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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.  
FORM 10-K  

PART I  

This Report contains statements which constitute fo rward- looking statements within the meaning of Section 27 A of the Securities Act 
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Th ese statements appear in a number of places in this  Report and include all 
statements regarding the intent, belief or current expectations of the Company, its directors or its o fficers with respect to, 
among other things: (i) the Company’s financing pla ns; (ii) trends affecting the Company’s financial c ondition or results of 
operations; (iii) the Company’s growth strategy and  operating strategy; and (iv) the declaration and p ayment of dividends. 
Investors are cautioned that any such forward-looki ng statements are not guarantees of future performa nce and involve risks and 
uncertainties, and that actual results may differ m aterially from those projected in the forward-looki ng statements as a result of 
various factors discussed herein and those factors discussed in detail in the Company’s filings with t he Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  

ITEM 1.   BUSINESS.  

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY  

General  

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) was inco rporated on June 23, 1995 to serve as a holding com pany for The First, A 
National Banking Association (“The First”) located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First began operat ions on August 5, 1996 from 
its main office in the Oak Grove community, which w as on the outskirts of Hattiesburg but now is inclu ded in the city of 
Hattiesburg. In addition to the main office in Hatt iesburg and the branch in Laurel, The First also op erates two other branches in 
Hattiesburg, one in Purvis, one in Picayune, one in  Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins, and one in Gulfport, 
Mississippi. The Company and its subsidiary bank en gage in a general commercial and retail banking bus iness characterized by 
personalized service and local decision-making, emp hasizing the banking needs of small to medium-sized  businesses, professional 
concerns and individuals. The First is a wholly-own ed subsidiary bank of the Company.  

Location and Service Area  

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, Laurel,  Purvis, Picayune, Pascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wiggi ns, Gulfport and the 



surrounding areas of Lamar, Forrest, Jones, Pearl R iver ,Jackson, Hancock, Stone and Harrison Counties , Mississippi. The First has 
a main office located in the city of Hattiesburg, M ississippi, in Lamar County. The First has a branch  office located on Highway 
589 in the city of Purvis, Mississippi, also in Lam ar County, a third office located at the intersecti on of Lincoln Road and South 
28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a fourth location at 33 18 Hardy Street in Hattiesburg, a fifth location at  Hwy 15 North in Laurel, a 
sixth location at Hwy 43 South in Picayune, a seven th location at Jackson Avenue in Pascagoula, an eig hth location at Hwy 90 in Bay 
St. Louis, a ninth location at Border Ave. in Wiggi ns and a tenth location at Hwy 49 and O’Neal Rd in Gulfport, Mississippi.  

The main office primarily serves the area in and ar ound the northern portion of Lamar County. The Purv is office primarily serves 
the area in and around Purvis, Mississippi, which i s in the east central part of Lamar County and is t he county seat. Lamar County 
is located in the southeastern section of Mississip pi. Hattiesburg, one of the largest cities in Missi ssippi, is located in Forrest 
and Lamar Counties. The Laurel office serves the ci ty of Laurel and the surrounding area of Jones Coun ty, Mississippi. The Picayune 
office primarily serves the area in and around Pica yune, Mississippi, including areas of north Hancock  County and Pearl River, LA 
and Slidell, LA. Picayune is located in the souther n part of Pearl River County. Pearl River County is  located in the southern 
section of Mississippi. The Pascagoula office prima rily serves the area in and around Pascagoula, Miss issippi, including areas of 
Jackson County. Hattiesburg can be reached via U.S.  Highways 98 and 49 and Interstate 59. Major employ ers located in the Lamar and 
Forrest County areas include Forrest General Hospit al, the University of Southern Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Camp Shelby, 
the Hattiesburg Public Schools, the Hattiesburg Cli nic, the City of Hattiesburg, and Marshall Durbin P oultry. The principal 
components of the economy of the Lamar and Forrest County areas include service industries, wholesale and retail trade, 
manufacturing, and transportation and public utilit ies. The Laurel branch is located at 1945 Highway 1 5 North, Laurel, MS, with the 
majority of its retail business coming from the loc al area and the remaining business coming from othe r areas of Jones County, as 
well as portions of Jasper County, Wayne County, Sm ith County, and Covington County. Major employers i n the Jones County area 
include Howard Industries, Sanderson Farms, Inc., a nd South Central Regional Medical Center. Major emp loyers in the Pearl River 
County area include Stennis Space Center, Chevron, Texaco, Arizona Chemical, American Crescent Elevato r Co., City of Picayune, 
Crosby Memorial Hospital and the public schools. Th e principal components of the economy of the Pearl River County area include 
timer, service industries, wholesale and retail tra de, manufacturing, and transportation and public ut ilities. Major employers in 
the Jackson County area include Northrop Grumman, S inging River Hospital, and Shell Oil Company. The B ay St. Louis office serves 
the City of Bay St. Louis and the surrounding area of Hancock County, Mississippi. Bay St. Louis can b e reached via U.S. Highway 
90. Major employers in the Hancock area include the  City of Bay St. Louis, Hancock County, and Stennis  Space Center. The Wiggins 
office serves the City of Wiggins and the surroundi ng area of Stone County, Mississippi. Stone County is south of Forrest County 
and north of Harrison County. Wiggins can be reache d via U. S. Highway 49. The Gulfport office serves the City of Gulfport and the 
surrounding area of Harrison County, Mississippi. G ulfport can be reached via U.S. Highway 49. Major e mployers in the Harrison 
County area include Keesler Air Force Base and a va st array of casinos.  

Banking Services  

The Company strives to provide its customers with t he breadth of products and services comparable to t hose offered by large 
regional banks, while maintaining the quick respons e and personal service of a locally owned and manag ed bank. In addition to 
offering a full range of deposit services and comme rcial and personal loans, The First offers products  such as mortgage loan 
originations. The following is a description of the  products and services offered or planned to be off ered by the Bank.  

•        Deposit Services .  The Bank offers a full range of deposit services  that are typically available in most banks 
         and savings and loan associations, includi ng checking accounts, NOW accounts, savings account s, and other time 
         deposits of various types, ranging from da ily money market accounts to longer-term certificat es of deposit.  The 
         transaction accounts and time certificates  are tailored to the Bank's principal market area a t rates competitive 
         to those offered by other banks in the are a.  In addition, the Bank offers certain retirement  account services, 
         such as Individual Retirement Accounts (IR As).  All deposit accounts are insured by the Feder al Deposit Insurance 
         Corporation (the "FDIC") up to the maximum  amount allowed by law.  The Bank solicits these ac counts from 
         individuals, businesses, associations and organizations, and governmental authorities. 
 
•        Loan Products .  The Bank offers a full range of commercial and p ersonal loans.  Commercial loans include both 
         secured and unsecured loans for working ca pital (including loans secured by inventory and acc ounts receivable), 
         business expansion (including acquisition of real estate and improvements), and purchase of e quipment and 
         machinery.  Consumer loans include equity lines of credit and secured and unsecured loans for  financing 
         automobiles, home improvements, education,  and personal investments.  The Bank also makes rea l estate 
         construction and acquisition loans.  The B ank's lending activities are subject to a variety o f lending limits 
         imposed by federal law.  While differing l imits apply in certain circumstances based on the t ype of loan or the 
         nature of the borrower (including the borr ower's relationship to the bank), in general the Ba nk is subject to a 
         loans-to-one-borrower limit of an amount e qual to 15% of the Bank's unimpaired capital and su rplus.  The Bank may 
         not make any loans to any director,  execu tive officer, or 10% shareholder unless the loan is  approved by the 
         Board of Directors of the Bank and is made  on terms not more favorable to such a person than would be available 
         to a person not affiliated with the Bank. 
 
•        Mortgage Loan Divisions .  The Bank has mortgage loan divisions which origi nate loans to purchase existing or 
         construct new homes and to refinance exist ing mortgages. 
 
•        Other Services .  Other bank services include on-line Internet ban king services, voice response telephone inquiry 
         service, commercial sweep accounts, cash m anagement services, safe deposit boxes, travelers c hecks, direct 
         deposit of payroll and social security che cks, and automatic drafts for various accounts.  Th e Bank is associated 
         with the Money Belt, Gulfnet, and Plus net works of automated teller machines that may be used  by the Bank's 
         customers throughout Mississippi and other  regions.  The Banks also offer VISA and MasterCard  credit card 
         services through a correspondent bank. 
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Competition  

The Bank generally competes with other financial in stitutions through the selection of banking product s and services offered, the 
pricing of services, the level of service provided,  the convenience and availability of services, and the degree of expertise and 
the personal manner in which services are offered. Mississippi law permits statewide branching by bank s and savings institutions, 
and many financial institutions in the state have b ranch networks. Consequently, commercial banking in  Mississippi is highly 
competitive. Many large banking organizations curre ntly operate in the Company’s market area, several of which are controlled by 
out-of-state ownership. In addition, competition be tween commercial banks and thrift institutions (sav ings institutions and credit 
unions) has been intensified significantly by the e limination of many previous distinctions between th e various types of financial 
institutions and the expanded powers and increased activity of thrift institutions in areas of banking  which previously had been 



the sole domain of commercial banks. Federal legisl ation, together with other regulatory changes by th e primary regulators of the 
various financial institutions, has resulted in the  almost total elimination of practical distinctions  between a commercial bank 
and a thrift institution. Consequently, competition  among financial institutions of all types is large ly unlimited with respect to 
legal ability and authority to provide most financi al services.  

The Company faces increased competition from both f ederally-chartered and state-chartered financial an d thrift institutions, as 
well as credit unions, consumer finance companies, insurance companies, and other institutions in the Company’s market area. Some 
of these competitors are not subject to the same de gree of regulation and restriction imposed upon the  Company. Many of these 
competitors also have broader geographic markets an d substantially greater resources and lending limit s than the Company and offer 
certain services such as trust banking that the Com pany does not currently provide. In addition, many of these competitors have 
numerous branch offices located throughout the exte nded market areas of the Company that may provide t hese competitors with an 
advantage in geographic convenience that the Compan y does not have at present.  

Currently there are numerous other commercial banks , savings institutions, and credit unions operating  in The First’s primary 
service area.  

Employees  

As of March 25, 2008 the Company had 171 full -time employees and 13 part-time employees.  

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION  

The Company and its bank are subject to state and f ederal banking laws and regulations which impose sp ecific requirements or 
restrictions on and provide for general regulatory oversight with respect to virtually all aspects of operations. These laws and 
regulations are generally intended to protect depos itors, not shareholders. To the extent that the fol lowing summary describes 
statutory or regulatory provisions, it is qualified  in its entirety by reference to the particular sta tutory and regulatory 
provisions. Any change in applicable laws or regula tions may have a material effect on the business an d prospects of the Company. 
Beginning with the enactment of the Financial Insti tutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 198 9 (“FIRREA”) and following 
with Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvem ent Act of 1991 (“FDICIA”), numerous additional reg ulatory requirements have 
been placed on the banking industry in the past sev eral years, and additional changes have been propos ed. The operations of the 
Company and the Bank may be affected by legislative  changes and the policies of various regulatory aut horities. The Company is 
unable to predict the nature or the extent of the e ffect on its business and earnings that fiscal or m onetary policies, economic 
control, or new federal or state legislation may ha ve in the future.  
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The Company  

Because it owns the outstanding capital stock of th e Bank, the Company is a bank holding company withi n the meaning of the Federal 
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the “BHCA”).  

The BHCA .    Under the BHCA, the Company is subject to peri odic examination by the Federal Reserve and is requ ired to file 
periodic reports of its operations and such additio nal information as the Federal Reserve may require.  The Company’s and the Banks’  
activities are limited to banking, managing or cont rolling banks, furnishing services to or performing  services for its 
subsidiaries, and engaging in other activities that  the Federal Reserve determines to be so closely re lated to banking or managing 
or controlling banks as to be a proper incident the reto.  

Investments, Control, and Activities .    With certain limited exceptions, the BHCA requ ires every bank holding company to obtain 
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before (i ) acquiring substantially all the assets of any ban k, (ii) acquiring direct or 
indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if after such acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of 
the voting shares of such bank (unless it already o wns or controls the majority of such shares), or (i ii) merging or consolidating 
with another bank holding company.  

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions, the  BHCA and the Change in Bank Control Act, together with regulations thereunder, 
require Federal Reserve approval (or, depending on the circumstances, no notice of disapproval) prior to any person or company 
acquiring “control” of a bank holding company, such  as the Company. Control is conclusively presumed t o exist if an individual or 
company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting  securities of the bank holding company. Control is  rebuttably presumed to exist 
if a person acquires 10% or more but less than 25% of any class of voting securities and either the Co mpany has registered 
securities under Section 12 of the Exchange Act (wh ich the Company has done) or no other person owns a  greater percentage of that 
class of voting securities immediately after the tr ansaction. The regulations provide a procedure for challenge of the rebuttable 
control presumption.  

Under the BHCA, a bank holding company is generally  prohibited from engaging in, or acquiring direct o r indirect control of more 
than 5% of the voting shares of any company engaged  in nonbanking activities, unless the Federal Reser ve Board, by order or 
regulation, has found those activities to be so clo sely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper 
incident thereto. Some of the activities that the F ederal Reserve Board has determined by regulation t o be proper incidents to the 
business of a bank holding company include making o r servicing loans and certain types of leases, enga ging in certain insurance and 
discount brokerage activities, performing certain d ata processing services, acting in certain circumst ances as a fiduciary or 
investment or financial adviser, owning savings ass ociations, and making investments in certain corpor ations or projects designed 
primarily to promote community welfare.  

The Federal Reserve Board has imposed certain capit al requirements on the Company under the BHCA, incl uding a minimum leverage 
ratio and a minimum ratio of “qualifying” capital t o risk-weighted assets. These requirements are desc ribed below under “Capital 
Regulations.” Subject to its capital requirements a nd certain other restrictions, the Company may borr ow money to make a capital 
contribution to the Banks, and such loans may be re paid from dividends paid from the Bank to the Compa ny (although the ability of 
the Bank to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions as described below in “The Bank — Divi dends”). The Company is also 
able to raise capital for contribution to the Bank by issuing securities without having to receive reg ulatory approval, subject to 
compliance with federal and state securities laws.  

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantee .    In accordance with Federal Reserve Board polic y, the Company is expected to act as a 
source of financial strength to the Bank and to com mit resources to support the Bank in circumstances in which the Company might 
not otherwise do so. Under the BHCA, the Federal Re serve Board may require a bank holding company to t erminate any activity or 
relinquish control of a nonbank subsidiary (other t han a nonbank subsidiary of a bank) upon the Federa l Reserve Board’s 
determination that such activity or control constit utes a serious risk to the financial soundness or s tability of any subsidiary 
depository institution of the bank holding company.  Further, federal bank regulatory authorities have additional discretion to 



require a bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary if the agency determ ines that divestiture may aid 
the depository institution’s financial condition.  
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The Bank  

The Bank operates as a national banking association  incorporated under the laws of the United States a nd subject to examination by 
the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (“OCC”). Deposits in the Bank are insured by the FDIC up to a maximum amount (generally 
$100,000 per depositor, subject to aggregation rule s). The OCC and the FDIC regulate or monitor virtua lly all areas of the Bank’s 
operations, including security devices and procedur es, adequacy of capitalization and loan loss reserv es, loans, investments, 
borrowings, deposits, mergers, issuances of securit ies, payment of dividends, interest rates payable o n deposits, interest rates or 
fees chargeable on loans, establishment of branches , corporate reorganizations, maintenance of books a nd records, and adequacy of 
staff training to carry on safe lending and deposit  gathering practices. The OCC requires the Bank to maintain certain capital 
ratios and imposes limitations on the Bank’s aggreg ate investment in real estate, bank premises, and f urniture and fixtures. The 
Bank is required by the OCC to prepare quarterly re ports on their financial condition and to conduct a n annual audit of their 
financial affairs in compliance with minimum standa rds and procedures prescribed by the OCC.  

Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undergo  regular on-site examinations by their appropriate banking agency. The cost of 
examinations of insured depository institutions and  any affiliates may be assessed by the appropriate agency against each 
institution or affiliate as it deems necessary or a ppropriate. Insured institutions are required to su bmit annual reports to the 
FDIC and the appropriate agency (and state supervis or when applicable). FDICIA also directs the FDIC t o develop with other 
appropriate agencies a method for insured depositor y institutions to provide supplemental disclosure o f the estimated fair market 
value of assets and liabilities, to the extent feas ible and practicable, in any balance sheet, financi al statement, report of 
condition, or any other report of any insured depos itory institution. FDICIA also requires the federal  banking regulatory agencies 
to prescribe, by regulation, standards for all insu red depository institutions and depository institut ion holding companies 
relating, among other things, to: (i) internal cont rols, information systems, and audit systems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii) 
credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposu re; and (v) asset quality.  

National banks and their holding companies which ha ve been chartered or registered or undergone a chan ge in control within the past 
two years or which have been deemed by the OCC or t he Federal Reserve Board, respectively, to be troub led institutions must give 
the OCC or the Federal Reserve Board, respectively,  thirty days prior notice of the appointment of any  senior executive officer or 
director. Within the thirty day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Board, as the case may be, may approve or disapprove any 
such appointment.  

Deposit Insurance .    The FDIC establishes rates for the payment of premiums by federally insured banks and thrifts for  deposit 
insurance. A separate Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) a nd Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIF”) are maintained for commercial 
banks and thrifts, respectively, with insurance pre miums from the industry used to offset losses from insurance payouts when banks 
and thrifts fail. Since 1993, insured depository in stitutions like the Bank have paid for deposit insu rance under a risk-based 
premium system.  

Transactions With Affiliates and Insiders .    The Bank is subject to Section 23A of the Fede ral Reserve Act, which places limits 
on the amount of loans to, and certain other transa ctions with, affiliates, as well as on the amount o f advances to third parties 
collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggregate of all covered transactio ns is limited in amount, as 
to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Bank’s capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates combined, to 20% of the Bank’ s capital and 
surplus. Furthermore, within the foregoing limitati ons as to amount, each covered transaction must mee t specified collateral 
requirements.  

The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fede ral Reserve Act, which prohibits an institution fro m engaging in certain 
transactions with affiliates unless the transaction s are on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable to such 
institution, as those prevailing at the time for co mparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies.  The Bank is subject to 
certain restrictions on extensions of credit to exe cutive officers, directors, certain principal share holders, and their related 
interests. Such extensions of credit (i) must be ma de on substantially the same terms, including inter est rates and collateral, as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transac tions with third parties and (ii) must not involve more than the normal risk of 
repayment or present other unfavorable features.  
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Dividends .     A national bank may not pay dividends from it s capital. All dividends must be paid out of undivi ded profits then on 
hand, after deducting expenses, including reserves for losses and bad debts. In addition, a national b ank is prohibited from 
declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus equals its stated capital, unless  the bank has transferred to 
surplus no less than one-tenth of its net profits o f the preceding two consecutive half-year periods ( in the case of an annual 
dividend). The approval of the OCC is required if t he total of all dividends declared by a national ba nk in any calendar year 
exceeds the total of its net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits for the prec eding two years, less any 
required transfers to surplus. In addition, under F DICIA, the banks may not pay a dividend if, after p aying the dividend, the bank 
would be undercapitalized. See “Capital Regulations ” below.  

Branching .     National banks are required by the National B ank Act to adhere to branch office banking laws app licable to state 
banks in the states in which they are located. Unde r current Mississippi law, the Banks may open branc hes throughout Mississippi 
with the prior approval of the OCC. In addition, wi th prior regulatory approval, the Banks are able to  acquire existing banking 
operations in Mississippi. Furthermore, federal leg islation has recently been passed which permits int erstate branching. The new 
law permits out of state acquisitions by bank holdi ng companies (subject to veto by new state law), in terstate branching by banks 
if allowed by state law, interstate merging by bank s, and de novo branching by national banks if allow ed by state law. See “Recent 
Legislative Developments.”  

Community Reinvestment Act .    The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, in connection with examinations of financial 
institutions within their respective jurisdictions,  the Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the Off ice of Thrift Supervision 
shall evaluate the record of the financial institut ions in meeting the credit needs of their local com munities, including low and 
moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the safe and sound operation of those institutions. The se factors are also 
considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions, and  applications to open a branch or facility.  

Other Regulations .    Interest and certain other charges collected o r contracted for by the Banks are subject to state usury laws 
and certain federal laws concerning interest rates.  The Bank’s loan operations are subject to certain federal laws applicable to 



credit transactions, such as the federal Truth-In-L ending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms t o consumer borrowers; the 
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring fin ancial institutions to provide information to enabl e the public and public 
officials to determine whether a financial institut ion is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the h ousing needs community it 
serves; the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiti ng discrimination on the basis of creed or other pr ohibited factors in extending 
credit; the Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, gove rning the use and provision of information to credi t reporting agencies; the 
Fair Debt Collection Act, concerning the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection  agencies; and the rules and 
regulations of the various federal agencies charged  with the responsibility of implementing such feder al laws. The deposit 
operations of the Bank also are subject to the Righ t to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to  maintain confidentiality of 
consumer financial records and prescribes procedure s for complying with administrative subpoenas of fi nancial records, and the 
Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E issu ed by the Federal Reserve Board to implement that A ct, which governs automatic 
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts a nd customers’ rights and liabilities arising from t he use of automated teller 
machines and other electronic banking services.  

Capital Regulations .    The federal bank regulatory authorities have a dopted risk-based capital guidelines for banks and bank 
holding companies that are designed to make regulat ory capital requirements more sensitive to differen ces in risk profile among 
banks and bank holding companies, account for off- balance sheet exposure, and minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. The 
resulting capital ratios represent qualifying capit al as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets an d off-balance sheet items. 
The guidelines are minimums, and the federal regula tors have noted that banks and bank holding compani es contemplating significant 
expansion programs should not allow expansion to di minish their capital ratios and should maintain rat ios well in excess of the 
minimums. The current guidelines require all bank h olding companies and federally-regulated banks to m aintain a minimum risk-based 
total capital ratio equal to 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital includes common shareholders’ equity, 
qualifying perpetual preferred stock, and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsid iaries, but excludes goodwill 
and most other intangibles and excludes the allowan ce for loan and lease losses. Tier 2 capital includ es the excess of any 
preferred stock not included in Tier 1 capital, man datory convertible securities, hybrid capital instr uments, subordinated debt and 
intermediate term-preferred stock, and general rese rves for loan and lease losses up to 1.25% of risk- weighted assets.  
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Under the guidelines, banks’ and bank holding compa nies’ assets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 50%  and 100%. In addition, 
certain off-balance sheet items are given credit co nversion factors to convert them to asset equivalen t amounts to which an 
appropriate risk-weight will apply. These computati ons result in the total risk-weighted assets. Most loans are assigned to the 
100% risk category, except for first mortgage loans  fully secured by residential property and, under c ertain circumstances, 
residential construction loans, both of which carry  a 50% rating. Most investment securities are assig ned to the 20% category, 
except for municipal or state revenue bonds, which have a 50% rating, and direct obligations of or obl igations guaranteed by the 
United States Treasury or United States Government agencies, which have a 0% rating.  

The federal bank regulatory authorities have also i mplemented a leverage ratio, which is Tier 1 capita l as a percentage of average 
total assets less intangibles, to be used as a supp lement to the risk-based guidelines. The principal objective of the leverage 
ratio is to place a constraint on the maximum degre e to which a bank holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The 
minimum required leverage ratio for top-rated insti tutions is 3%, but most institutions are required t o maintain an additional 
cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis points.  

FDICIA established a capital-based regulatory schem e designed to promote early intervention for troubl ed banks and requires the 
FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of ba nk failures. The capital-based regulatory framework  contains five categories of 
compliance with regulatory capital requirements, in cluding “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized ,” “undercapitalized,” 
“significantly undercapitalized,” and “critically u ndercapitalized.” To qualify as a “well capitalized ” institution, a bank must 
have a leverage ratio of no less than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less than 6%, and a total ri sk-based capital ratio of no 
less than 10%, and the Bank must not be under any o rder or directive from the appropriate regulatory a gency to meet and maintain a 
specific capital level. As of December 31, 2006, th e Company and The First, were qualified as “well ca pitalized.”  

Under the FDICIA regulations, the applicable agency  can treat an institution as if it were in the next  lower category if the agency 
determines (after notice and an opportunity for hea ring) that the institution is in an unsafe or unsou nd condition or is engaging 
in an unsafe or unsound practice. The degree of reg ulatory scrutiny of a financial institution will in crease, and the permissible 
activities of the institution will decrease, as it moves downward through the capital categories. Inst itutions that fall into one 
of the three undercapitalized categories may be req uired to (i) submit a capital restoration plan; (ii ) raise additional capital; 
(iii) restrict their growth, deposit interest rates , and other activities; (iv) improve their manageme nt; (v) eliminate management 
fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or part of t heir operations. Bank holding companies controlling  financial institutions can 
be called upon to boost the institutions’ capital a nd to partially guarantee the institutions’ perform ance under their capital 
restoration plans.  

These capital guidelines can affect the Company in several ways. If the Company continues to grow at a  rapid pace, a premature 
“squeeze” on capital could occur making a capital i nfusion necessary. The requirements could impact th e Company’s ability to pay 
dividends. The Company’s present capital levels are  more than adequate; however, rapid growth, poor lo an portfolio performance, or 
poor earnings performance could change the Company’ s capital position in a relatively short period of time.  

Failure to meet these capital requirements would me an that a bank would be required to develop and fil e a plan with its primary 
federal banking regulator describing the means and a schedule for achieving the minimum capital requir ements. In addition, such a 
bank would generally not receive regulatory approva l of any application that requires the consideratio n of capital adequacy, such 
as a branch or merger application, unless the Bank could demonstrate a reasonable plan to meet the cap ital requirement within a 
reasonable period of time.  

Enforcement Powers .    FIRREA expanded and increased civil and crimin al penalties available for use by the federal regul atory 
agencies against depository institutions and certai n “institution-affiliated parties” (primarily inclu ding management, employees, 
and agents of a financial institution, independent contractors such as attorneys and accountants, and others who participate in the 
conduct of the financial institution’s affairs). Th ese practices can include the failure of an institu tion to timely file required 
reports; the filing of false or misleading informat ion; or the submission of inaccurate reports. Civil  penalties may be as high as 
$1,000,000 a day for such violations. Criminal pena lties for some financial institution crimes have be en increased to twenty years. 
In addition, regulators are provided with greater f lexibility to commence enforcement actions against institutions and institution-
affiliated parties. Possible enforcement actions in clude the termination of deposit insurance. Further more, FIRREA expanded the 
appropriate banking agencies’ power to issue cease and desist orders that may, among other things, req uire affirmative action to 
correct any harm resulting from a violation or prac tice, including restitution, reimbursement, indemni fications, or guarantees 
against loss. A financial institution may also be o rdered to restrict its growth, dispose of certain a ssets, rescind agreements or 
contracts, or take other actions as determined by t he ordering agency to be appropriate.  
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Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies .    The earnings of the Bank are affected by domes tic economic conditions and the 
monetary and fiscal policies of the United States g overnment and its agencies. The Federal Reserve Boa rd’s monetary policies have 
had, and are likely to continue to have, an importa nt impact on the operating results of commercial ba nks through its power to 
implement national monetary policy in order, among other things, to curb inflation or combat a recessi on. The monetary policies of 
the Federal Reserve Board have major effects upon t he levels of bank loans, investments, and deposits through its open market 
operations in United States government securities a nd through its regulation of the discount rate on b orrowings of member banks and 
the reserve requirements against member bank deposi ts. It is not possible to predict the nature or imp act of future changes in 
monetary and fiscal policies.  

Significant Legislative Developments .    On September 29, 1994, the federal government enacted the Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking 
and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the “Intersta te Banking Act”). This Act became effective on Sept ember 29, 1995 and permits 
eligible bank holding companies in any state, with regulatory approval, to acquire banking organizatio ns in any other state. Since 
June 1, 1997, the Interstate Banking Act has allowe d banks with different home states to merge, unless  a particular state opts out 
of the statute. In addition, beginning June 1, 1997 , the Interstate Banking Act has permitted national  and state banks to establish 
de novo branches in another state if there is a law  in that state which applies equally to all banks a nd expressly permits all out-
of-state banks to establish de novo branches.  

On November 12, 1999, the Gramm- Leach-Bliley Act o f 1999 (the “Financial Services Modernization Act”)  was signed into law. The 
Financial Services Modernization Act repeals the tw o affiliation provisions of the Glass- Steagall Act: Section 20, which restricted 
the affiliation of Federal Reserve Member Banks wit h firms “engaged principally” in specified securiti es activities; and Section 
32, which restricts officer, director, or employee interlocks between a member bank and any company or  person “primarily engaged” 
in specified securities activities. In addition, th e Financial Services Modernization Act also contain s provisions that expressly 
preempt any state law restricting the establishment  of financial affiliations, primarily related to in surance. The general effect 
of the law is to establish a comprehensive framewor k to permit affiliations among commercial banks, in surance companies, securities 
firms, and other financial service providers by rev ising and expanding the BHCA framework to permit a holding company system to 
engage in a full range of financial activities thro ugh a new entity known as a Financial Holding Compa ny. “Financial activities” is 
broadly defined to include not only banking, insura nce, and securities activities, but also merchant b anking and additional 
activities that the Federal Reserve, in consultatio n with the Secretary of the Treasury, determines to  be financial in nature, 
incidental to such financial activities, or complem entary activities that do not pose a substantial ri sk to the safety and 
soundness of depository institutions or the financi al system generally.  

Generally, the Financial Services Modernization Act :  

         •        Repeals historical restrictions o n, and eliminates many federal and state law barrie rs to, affiliations 
                  among banks, securities firms, in surance companies, and other financial service prov iders; 
 
         •        Provides a uniform framework for the functional regulation of the activities of bank s, savings 
                  institutions, and their holding c ompanies; 
 
         •        Broadens the activities that may be conducted by national banks, banking subsidiarie s of bank holding 
                  companies, and their financial su bsidiaries; 
 
         •        Provides an enhanced framework fo r protecting the privacy of consumer information; 
 
         •        Adopts a number of provisions rel ated to the capitalization, membership, corporate g overnance, and other 
                  measures designed to modernize th e Federal Home Loan Bank system; 
 
         •        Modifies the laws governing the i mplementation of the Community Reinvestment Act ("C RA"); and 
 
         •        Addresses a variety of other lega l and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day o perations and 
                  long-term activities of financial  institutions. 

8  

In order for a bank holding company to take advanta ge of the ability to affiliate with other financial  services providers, that 
company must become a “Financial Holding Company” a s permitted under an amendment to the BHCA. To beco me a Financial Holding 
Company, the company would file a declaration with the Federal Reserve, electing to engage in activiti es permissible for Financial 
Holding Companies and certifying that it is eligibl e to do so because all of its insured depository in stitution subsidiaries are 
well-capitalized and well-managed. In addition, the  Federal Reserve must also determine that each insu red depository institution 
subsidiary of the Company has at least a “satisfact ory” CRA rating.  

The Financial Services Modernization Act also permi ts national banks to engage in expanded activities through the formation of 
financial subsidiaries. A national bank may have a subsidiary engaged in any activity authorized for n ational banks directly or any 
financial activity, except for insurance underwriti ng, insurance investments, real estate investment o r development, or merchant 
banking, which may only be conducted through a subs idiary of a Financial Holding Company. Financial ac tivities include all 
activities permitted under new sections of the BHCA  or permitted by regulation.  

A national bank seeking to have a financial subsidi ary, and each of its depository institution affilia tes, must be “well-
capitalized” and “well-managed.” The total assets o f all financial subsidiaries may not exceed the les ser of 45% of a bank’s total 
assets, or $50 billion. A national bank must exclud e from its assets and equity all equity investments , including retained 
earnings, in a financial subsidiary. The assets of the subsidiary may not be consolidated with the ban k’s assets. The bank must 
also have policies and procedures to assess financi al subsidiary risk and protect the bank from such r isks and potential 
liabilities.  

The Financial Services Modernization Act also inclu des a new section of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act governing subsidiaries of 
state banks that engage in “activities as principal  that would only be permissible” for a national ban k to conduct in a financial 
subsidiary. It expressly preserves the ability of a  state bank to retain all existing subsidiaries. Be cause Mississippi permits 
commercial banks chartered by the state to engage i n any activity permissible for national banks, the state bank competitors of The 
First will be permitted to form subsidiaries to eng age in the activities authorized by the Financial S ervices Modernization Act, to 
the same extent as The First. In order to form a fi nancial subsidiary, a state bank must be well-capit alized, and the state bank 
would be subject to the same capital deduction, ris k management and affiliate transaction rules as app licable to national banks.  

During January 2001, the Company made application a nd was approved by the Federal Reserve Bank to beco me a financial holding 



company; however, the Company has no current plans to pursue expanded activities under the Financial S ervices Modernization Act. 
The Company’s management has not determined at this  time whether it will seek to form a financial subs idiary. The Company is 
examining its strategic business plan to determine whether, based on market conditions, the relative f inancial conditions of the 
Company and its subsidiaries, regulatory capital re quirements, general economic conditions, and other factors, the Company desires 
to utilize any of its expanded powers provided in t he Financial Services Modernization Act.  

The Company and the Bank do not believe that the Fi nancial Services Modernization Act will have a mate rial adverse effect on 
operations in the near-term. However, to the extent  that it permits banks, securities firms, and insur ance companies to affiliate, 
the financial services industry may experience furt her consolidation. The Financial Services Moderniza tion Act is intended to grant 
to community banks certain powers as a matter of ri ght that larger institutions have accumulated on an  ad hoc basis. Nevertheless, 
this act may have the result of increasing the amou nt of competition that the Company and the Bank fac e from larger institutions 
and other types of companies offering financial pro ducts, many of which may have substantially more fi nancial resources than the 
Company and the Bank.  
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In 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by P roviding Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept an d Obstruct Terrorism Act of 
2001 (USA Patriot Act) was signed into law. The USA  Patriot Act broadened the application of anti-mone y laundering regulations to 
apply to additional types of financial institutions , such as broker- dealers, and strengthened the ability of the U.S. G overnment to 
detect and prosecute international money laundering  and the financing of terrorism. The principal prov isions of Title III of the 
USA Patriot Act require that regulated financial in stitutions, including state member banks: (i) estab lish an anti- money laundering 
program that includes training and audit components ; (ii) comply with regulations regarding the verifi cation of the identity of any 
person seeking to open an account; (iii) take addit ional required precautions with non-U.S. owned acco unts; and (iv) perform 
certain verification and certification of money lau ndering risk for their foreign correspondent bankin g relationships. The USA 
Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under whic h funds in a U.S. interbank account may be subject to forfeiture and increased 
the penalties for violation of anti- money laundering regulations. Failure of a financia l institution to comply with the USA Patriot 
Act ’s requirements could have serious legal and reputa tional consequences for the institution. The Bank h as adopted policies, 
procedures and controls to address compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act under the e xisting regulations and will 
continue to revise and update its policies, procedu res and controls to reflect changes required by the  USA Patriot Act and 
implementing regulations.  

In July 2002, Congress enacted the Sarbanes-Oxley A ct of 2002, which addresses, among other issues, co rporate governance, auditing 
and accounting, executive compensation, and enhance d and timely disclosure of corporate information. S ection 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, and regulations adopted by the SEC will in the future require the Company to include in its  Annual Report, a report 
stating management’s responsibility to establish an d maintain adequate internal control over financial  reporting and management’s 
conclusion on the effectiveness of the internal con trols at year end. Additionally, the Company’s inde pendent registered public 
accounting firm will in the future be required to a ttest to and report on management’s evaluation of i nternal control over 
financial reporting.  

From time to time, various bills are introduced in the United States Congress with respect to the regu lation of financial 
institutions. Certain of these proposals, if adopte d, could significantly change the regulation of ban ks and the financial services 
industry. The Company cannot predict whether any of  these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted, ho w these proposals would 
affect the Company.  

ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS. 

Making or continuing an investment in securities, i ncluding The First Bancshares’ Common Stock, involv es certain risks that you 
should carefully consider. The risks and uncertaint ies described below are not the only risks that may  have a material adverse 
effect on First Bancshares. Additional risks and un certainties also could adversely affect First Bancs hares’ business and results 
of operations. If any of the following risks actual ly occur, First Bancshares’ business, financial con dition or results of 
operations could be affected, the market price for your securities could decline, and you could lose a ll or a part of your 
investment. Further, to the extent that any of the information contained in this Annual Report on Form  10-K constitutes forward-
looking statements, the risk factors set forth belo w also are cautionary statements identifying import ant factors that could cause 
First Bancshares’ actual results to differ material ly from those expressed in any forward-looking stat ements made by or on behalf 
of First Bancshares .  

First Bancshares may be vulnerable to certain secto rs of the economy .  

A portion of First Bancshares ’ loan portfolio is secured by real estate. If the economy deteriorated and depressed real estate 
values beyond a certain point, that collateral valu e of the portfolio and the revenue stream from thos e loans could come under 
stress and possibly require additional loan loss ac cruals. First Bancshares’ ability to dispose of foreclosed real estate at pri ces 
above the respective carrying values could also be impinged, causing additional losses.  

General economic conditions in the areas where Firs t Bancshares’ operations or loans are concentrated may adversely affect our 
customers ’ ability to meet their obligations.  
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A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in the g eographic markets served by First Bancshares in the  state of Mississippi may 
affect the ability of First Bancshares’ customers t o meet loan payments obligations on a timely basis.  The local economic 
conditions in these areas have a significant impact  on First Bancshares’ commercial, real estate, and construction loans, the 
ability of borrowers to repay these loans and the v alue of the collateral securing such loans. Changes  resulting in adverse 
economic conditions of First Bancshares’ market are as could negatively impact the financial results of  First Bancshares’ banking 
operations and its profitability. Additionally, adv erse economic changes may cause customers to withdr aw deposit balances, thereby 
causing a strain on First Bancshares’ liquidity.  

First Bancshares is subject to a risk of rapid and significant changes in market interest rates .  

First Bancshares’ assets and liabilities are primar ily monetary in nature, and as a result First Bancs hares is subject to 
significant risks tied to changes in interest rates . First Bancshares’ ability to operate profitably i s largely dependent upon net 
interest income. Unexpected movement in interest ra tes markedly changing the slope of the current yiel d curve could cause First 
Bancshares’ net interest margins to decrease, subse quently decreasing net interest income. In addition , such changes could 



adversely affect the valuation of First Bancshares’  assets and liabilities.  

At present First Bancshares ’ one-year interest rate sensitivity position is sl ightly asset sensitive, but a gradual increase in 
interest rates during the next twelve months should  not have a significant impact on net interest inco me during that period. 
However, as with most financial institutions, First  Bancshares’ results of operations are affected by changes in in terest rates and 
First Bancshares’ ability to manage this risk. The difference between interest rates charged on intere st-earning assets and 
interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities  may be affected by changes in market interest rate s, changes in relationships 
between interest rate indices, and/or changes in th e relationships between long-term and short- term market interest rates. A change 
in this difference might result in an increase in i nterest expense relative to interest income, or a d ecrease in First Bancshares’ 
interest rate spread.  

Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, or th e financial markets could affect demand for First B ancshares’ products and First 
Bancshares ’ ability to deliver products efficientl y.  

Loan originations, and potentially loan revenues, c ould be adversely impacted by sharply rising intere st rates. Conversely, sharply 
falling rates could increase prepayments within Fir st Bancshares’ securities portfolio lowering intere st earnings from those 
investments. An unanticipated increase in inflation  could cause First Bancshares’ operating costs rela ted to salaries &amp; 
benefits, technology, &amp; supplies to increase at  a faster pace than revenues.  

The fair market value of First Bancshares’ securiti es portfolio and the investment income from these s ecurities also fluctuate 
depending on general economic and market conditions . In addition, actual net investment income and/or cash flows from investments 
that carry prepayment risk, such as mortgage-backed  and other asset-backed securities, may differ from  those anticipated at the 
time of investment as a result of interest rate flu ctuations.  

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities and  other government action could adversely affect Fir st Bancshares’ 
profitability .  

The results of operations of First Bancshares are a ffected by credit policies of monetary authorities,  particularly the Federal 
Reserve Board. The instruments of monetary policy e mployed by the Federal Reserve Board include open m arket operations in U.S. 
government securities, changes in the discount rate  or the federal funds rate on bank borrowings and c hanges in reserve 
requirements against bank deposits. In view of chan ging conditions in the national economy and in the money markets, particularly 
in light of the continuing threat of terrorist atta cks and the current military operations in the Midd le East, we cannot predict 
possible future changes in interest rates, deposit levels, loan demand or First Bancshares’ business and earnings. Furthermore, the 
actions of the United States government and other g overnments in responding to such terrorist attacks or the military operations in 
the Middle East may result in currency fluctuations , exchange controls, market disruption and other ad verse effects.  
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Natural disasters could affect First Bancshares’ ab ility to operate  

First Bancshares’ market areas are susceptible to n atural disasters such as hurricanes. Natural disast ers can disrupt First 
Bancshares’ operations, result in damage to propert ies and negatively affect the local economies in wh ich First Bancshares 
operates. First Bancshares cannot predict whether o r to what extent damage caused by future hurricanes  will affect First 
Bancshares’ operations or the economies in First Ba ncshares’ market areas, but such weather events cou ld cause a decline in loan 
originations, a decline in the value or destruction  of properties securing the loans and an increase i n the risk of delinquencies, 
foreclosures or loan losses.  

Greater loan losses than expected may adversely aff ect First Bancshares’ earnings .  

First Bancshares as lender is exposed to the risk t hat its customers will be unable to repay their loa ns in accordance with their 
terms and that any collateral securing the payment of their loans may not be sufficient to assure repa yment. Credit losses are 
inherent in the business of making loans and could have a material adverse effect on First Bancshares’  operating results. First 
Bancshares’ credit risk with respect to its real es tate and construction loan portfolio will relate pr incipally to the 
creditworthiness of corporations and the value of t he real estate serving as security for the repaymen t of loans. First Bancshares’  
credit risk with respect to its commercial and cons umer loan portfolio will relate principally to the general creditworthiness of 
businesses and individuals within First Bancshares’  local markets.  

First Bancshares makes various assumptions and judg ments about the collectibility of its loan portfoli o and provide an allowance 
for estimated loan losses based on a number of fact ors. First Bancshares believes that its current all owance for loan losses is 
adequate. However, if First Bancshares’ assumptions  or judgments prove to be incorrect, the allowance for loan losses may not be 
sufficient to cover actual loan losses. First Bancs hares may have to increase its allowance in the fut ure in response to the 
request of one of its primary banking regulators, t o adjust for changing conditions and assumptions, o r as a result of any 
deterioration in the quality of First Bancshares’ l oan portfolio. The actual amount of future provisio ns for loan losses cannot be 
determined at this time and may vary from the amoun ts of past provisions.  

First Bancshares may need to rely on the financial markets to provide needed capital  

First Bancshares’ Common Stock is listed and traded  on the NASDAQ stock market. Although First Bancsha res anticipates that its 
capital resources will be adequate for the foreseea ble future to meet its capital requirements, at tim es First Bancshares may 
depend on the liquidity of the NASDAQ stock market to raise equity capital. If the market should fail to operate, or if conditions 
in the capital markets are adverse, First Bancshare s may be constrained in raising capital. First Banc shares maintains a consistent 
analyst following; therefore, downgrades in First B ancshares’ prospects by an analyst(s) may cause Fir st Bancshares’ Common Stock 
price to fall and significantly limit First Bancsha res’ ability to access the markets for additional c apital requirements. Should 
these risks materialize, First Bancshares’ ability to further expand its operations through internal g rowth may be limited.  

First Bancshares is subject to regulation by variou s Federal and State entities  

First Bancshares is subject to the regulations of t he Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the Federal Reserve Board, the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the OCC.  New regulations issued by these agencies may adver sely affect First Bancshares’  
ability to carry on its business activities. First Bancshares is subject to various Federal and state laws and certain changes in 
these laws and regulations may adversely affect Fir st Bancshares’ operations.  

First Bancshares is also subject to the accounting rules and regulations of the SEC and the Financial Accounting Standards Board. 
Changes in accounting rules could adversely affect the reported financial statements or results of ope rations of First Bancshares 



and may also require extraordinary efforts or addit ional costs to implement. Any of these laws or regu lations may be modified or 
changed from time to time, and First Bancshares can not be assured that such modifications or changes w ill not adversely affect 
First Bancshares.  
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First Bancshares engages in acquisitions of other b usinesses from time to time .  

On occasion, First Bancshares will engage in acquis itions of other businesses. Acquisitions may result  in customer and employee 
turnover, thus increasing the cost of operating the  new businesses. The acquired companies may also ha ve legal contingencies, 
beyond those that First Bancshares is aware of, tha t could result in unexpected costs.  

First Bancshares is subject to industry competition  which may have an impact upon its success .  

The profitability of First Bancshares depends on it s ability to compete successfully. First Bancshares  operates in a highly 
competitive financial services environment. Certain  competitors are larger and may have more resources  than First Bancshares does. 
First Bancshares faces competition in its regional market areas from other commercial banks, savings a nd loan associations, credit 
unions, internet banks, finance companies, mutual f unds, insurance companies, brokerage and investment  banking firms, and other 
financial intermediaries that offer similar service s. Some of First Bancshares’ nonbank competitors ar e not subject to the same 
extensive regulations that govern First Bancshares or the Bank and may have greater flexibility in com peting for business.  

Another competitive factor is that the financial se rvices market, including banking services, is under going rapid changes with 
frequent introductions of new technology-driven pro ducts and services. First Bancshares’ future success may depend, in part, on its 
ability to use technology competitively to provide products and services that provide convenience to c ustomers and create 
additional efficiencies in First Bancshares’ operat ions.  

Future issuances of additional securities could res ult in dilution of shareholders’ ownership .  

First Bancshares may determine from time to time to  issue additional securities to raise additional ca pital, support growth, or to 
make acquisitions. Further, First Bancshares may is sue stock options or other stock grants to retain a nd motivate First Bancshares’  
employees. Such issuances of Company securities wil l dilute the ownership interests of First Bancshare s’ shareholders.  

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chart er provisions may adversely affect share value .  

Certain provisions of state and federal law and Fir st Bancshares’ articles of incorporation may make i t more difficult for someone 
to acquire control of First Bancshares. Under feder al law, subject to certain exemptions, a person, en tity, or group must notify 
the federal banking agencies before acquiring 10% o r more of the outstanding voting stock of a bank ho lding company, including 
First Bancshares’ shares. Banking agencies review t he acquisition to determine if it will result in a change of control. The 
banking agencies have 60 days to act on the notice,  and take into account several factors, including t he resources of the acquiror 
and the antitrust effects of the acquisition. There  also are Mississippi statutory provisions and prov isions in First Bancshares’ 
articles of incorporation that may be used to delay  or block a takeover attempt. As a result, these st atutory provisions and 
provisions in First Bancshares’ articles of incorpo ration could result in First Bancshares being less attractive to a potential 
acquiror.  

Securities issued by First Bancshares, including Fi rst Bancshares’ Common Stock, are not FDIC insured .  

Securities issued by First Bancshares, including Fi rst Bancshares’ Common Stock, are not savings or de posit accounts or other 
obligations of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, the Deposit Insurance Fund, or any other gove rnmental agency or 
instrumentality, or any private insurer, and are su bject to investment risk, including the possible lo ss of principal.  

13  

ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

Not Applicable  

ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES. 

The First has a main office located west of the cit y of Hattiesburg, Mississippi, in Lamar County. The  main office is located in a 
13,000 square foot facility which the Company const ructed and opened in January 1997 on a two acre plo t of land at the southwest 
corner of U.S. Highway 98 and Old Highway 11. The F irst also has a branch office located on Highway 15  North in the city of Laurel, 
Mississippi, one on Highway 589 in the city of Purv is, Mississippi, which is in Lamar County, a fourth  office in a 3,300 square 
foot facility located at the intersection of Lincol n Road and South 28th Avenue in Hattiesburg, a fift h office located at 3318 
Hardy Street in Hattiesburg, which will be closing on April 11, 2008 and reopening in an 11,700 square  foot building located at 110 
S. 40th Ave., Hattiesburg, MS, on April 14, 2008, a  sixth office located on Hwy 43 South, Picayune, MS  in a 3,800 sq. ft. 
facility , a seventh office located at 1126 Jackson  Ave in Pascagoula, MS, an eighth office located at  Hwy 90 in Bay St. Louis, MS, 
a ninth location on Border Ave. in Wiggins, MS, as well as a tenth location located at Hwy 49 and O’Ne al Rd. in Gulfport, MS.  

The Company believes that the Bank’s facilities wil l adequately serve their needs.  

ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. 

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank may b e named as defendants in various lawsuits arising o ut of the normal course of 
business. On October 8, 2007 The First Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiary, The First,  A National Banking 
Association (the “Bank”) were formally named as defendants and serve d with a First Amended Complaint in litigation styl ed Nick D. 
Welch v. Oak Grove Land Company, Inc., Fred McMurry , David E. Johnson, J. Douglas Seidenburg, The Firs t, a National Banking 
Association, The First Bancshares, Inc., and John D oes 1 through 10, Civil Action No. 2006 -236- CV4, pending in the Circuit Court of 
Jones County, Mississippi, Second Judicial District  (the “First Amended Complaint”).  

The allegations by Welch against the Company and th e Bank include counts of 1) Intentional Misrepresen tation and Omission; 2) 
Negligent Misrepresentation and/or Omission; 3) Bre ach of Fiduciary Duty; 4) Breach of Duty of Good Fa ith and Fair Dealing; and 5) 
Civil Conspiracy. The First Amended Complaint serve d by Welch on October 8, 2007 added the Company and  the Bank as defendants in 



this ongoing litigation. The First Amended Complain t seeks damages from all the defendants, including $2,420,775.00, annual 
dividends for the year 2006 in the amount of $.30 p er share, punitive damages, and attorneys’ fees and  costs, and is more fully 
described in Form 8-K filed by the Company on Octob er 10, 2007. Each of the Company and the Bank deny any liability to Welch, and 
they intend to defend vigorously against this lawsu it.  

ITEM 4.    SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECUR ITY HOLDERS. 

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holde rs during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year cov ered by this report.  

PART II  

ITEM 5.   MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
          AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES .  

In response to this Item, the information contained  on page 53 of the Company’s Annual Report to Share holders for the year ended 
December 31, 2007, is incorporated herein by refere nce.  

ITEM 6.    SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 

In response to this Item, the information contained  on page 7 of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 
31, 2007, is incorporated herein by reference.  
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ITEM 7.   MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION AND 
          RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.  

In response to this Item, the information contained  on pages 6 through 23 of the Company’s Annual Repo rt to Shareholders for the 
year ended December 31, 2007, is incorporated herei n by reference.  

ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Not applicable.  

ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

In response to this Item, the information contained  on pages 25 through 52 of the Company’s Annual Rep ort to Shareholders for the 
year ended December 31, 2007, is incorporated herei n by reference.  

ITEM 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
         FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.  

Not applicable.  

ITEM 9A(T).    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

The Company’s principal executive officer and princ ipal financial officer have concluded, based upon t heir evaluation of the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007, that the Company’s disclosure co ntrols and procedures were 
effective. During the quarter ended December 31, 20 07, no changes have occurred in the Company’s inter nal control over financial 
reporting that have materially affected or are reas onably likely to materially affect the Company’ s internal control over financial 
reporting.  

                                     The First Bancshares, Inc. 
                Management’s Report on Internal Con trol Over Financial Reporting  

Management of The First Bancshares, Inc. and subsid iary (the “Company”) is responsible for establishin g and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting. Internal  control over financial reporting is a process desi gned to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial re porting and the preparation of financial statements  for external purposes in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

Under the supervision and with the participation of  management, including the principal executive offi cer and principal financial 
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the  effectiveness of internal control over financial r eporting based on the 
framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framewor k issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatio ns of the Treadway 
Commission. Based on this evaluation, management of  the Company has concluded the Company maintained e ffective internal control 
over financial reporting, as such term is defined i n Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 12a-15(f), as of December 31, 2007.  

Internal control over financial reporting cannot pr ovide absolute assurance of achieving financial rep orting objectives because of 
its inherent limitations. Internal control over fin ancial reporting is a process that involves human d iligence and compliance and 
is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns res ulting from human failures. Internal control over f inancial reporting can also 
be circumvented by collusion or improper management  override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material 
misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a  timely basis by internal control over financial re porting. These inherent 
limitations, however, are known features of the fin ancial reporting process. It is possible, therefore , to design into the process 
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this ri sk.  
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This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accountin g firm regarding internal 
control over financial reporting. Management’s repo rt was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting 
firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management’s 
report in this annual report.  



/s/ David E. Johnson                                        /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
-----------------------------------                        -------------------------------------------  
Chairman of the Board and CEO                               Executive VP and Chief Financial Officer 
March 28, 2008                                              March 28, 2008 

ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION 

Not applicable.  

PART III  

ITEM 10.    DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE  REGISTRANT. 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the captions, “Election of Directors” and “A dditional Information 
Concerning Directors and Officers” of the Company’s  Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharehol ders to be held on May 22, 
2008, is incorporated herein by reference.  

Code of Ethics  

The Company’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code  of Ethics that applies to the Company’s principal executive officer, principal 
financial officer, principal accounting officer, or  persons performing similar functions. A copy of th is Code of Ethics can be 
found at the Company’s internet website at www.thef irstbank.com. The Company intends to disclose any a mendments to its Code of 
Ethics, and any waiver from a provision of the Code  of Ethics granted to the Company’s principal execu tive officer, principal 
financial officer, principal accounting officer, or  persons performing similar functions, on the Compa ny’s internet website within 
five business days following such amendment or waiv er. The information contained on or connected to th e Company’s internet website 
is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10- K and should not be considered part of this or any other report that we file 
with or furnish to the SEC.  

Audit Committee  

The information contained under the caption “Commit tees of the Board of Directors” of the Company’s Pr oxy Statement for the Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 22, 2008,  is incorporated herein by reference. The Board of Directors has determined that 
there is at least one independent audit committee f inancial expert, J. Douglas Seidenburg, serving on the Audit Committee, as the 
terms independent and audit committee financial exp ert are used in pertinent Securities and Exchange C ommission laws and 
regulations.  

Corporate Governance  

The information contained under the caption “Additi onal Information Concerning Directors and Officers”  of the Company’s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to  be held on May 22, 2008, is incorporated herein by  reference.  

ITEM 11.    EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION. 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Compensation Discussion and Ana lysis” of the Company’ s Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to  be held on May 22, 2008, is incorporated herein by  reference.  
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ITEM 12.   SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL  OWNERS AND 
           MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTE RS.  

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain B eneficial Owners and 
Management” of the Company’s Proxy Statement for th e Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 22, 2008, is incorporated 
herein by reference.  

ITEM 13.    CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS. 

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Certain Relationships and Relat ed Transactions” of the 
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of  Shareholders to be held on May 22, 2008, is incorp orated herein by reference.  

ITEM 14.    PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.  

In response to this Item, the information contained  under the caption “Principal Accountant Fees and S ervices” of the Company’s 
Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of Sharehold ers to be held on May 22, 2008, is incorporated her ein by reference.  

PART IV  

ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES. 

The following exhibits are furnished (or incorporat ed by reference):  

   Exhibit Number          Description 
   --------------          ----------- 
 
         3.1               Amended and Restated Art icles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference t o Exhibit 3.1 to the 
                           Company's Registration S tatement No. 33-94288 on Form S-1). 
 
         3.2               Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's Registrat ion Statement No. 
                           33-94288 on Form S-1). 
 
         4.1               Provisions in the Compan y's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws defining t he rights of holders 
                           of the Company's Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's 



                           Registration Statement N o. 33-94288 on Form S-1). 
 
         4.2               Form of Certificate of C ommon Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 .2 to the Company's 
                           Registration Statement N o. 33-94288 on Form S-1). 
 
         10.5              Amended and restated emp loyment agreement dated November 20, 1995, by and b etween David E. 
                           Johnson and the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the C ompany's Form 10-KSB 
                           for the fiscal  year end ed December 31, 1995, File No. 33-94288). 
 
         10.6              First Bancshares, Inc. 1 997 Stock Option Plan as of March 18, 1997 (incorpo rated by reference 
                           to Exhibit 10.7 of the C ompany's Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended Dece mber 31, 1996, File 
                           No. 33-94288). 
 
         10.7              Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and among The First Bancshares, Inc., Nick  Welch and David 
                           Johnson  (incorporated b y reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Regist ration Statement No. 
                           333-102908 on Form S-2).  
 
         13                The Company's 2007 Annua l Report 
 
         21                Subsidiaries of the Comp any 
 
         23                Consent of Independent R egistered Public Accounting Firm 
 
         31                Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)  Certifications 
 
         32                Section 1350 Certificati ons 
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                                                        SIGNATURES 
 
 
         In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report  to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorize d. 
 
                                                              THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
 
 
Date: March 28, 2008                                          By:   /s/ David E. Johnson 
                                                                  ------------------------------------ ------------------- 
                                                                    David E. Johnson 
                                                                    Chief Executive Officer (Principal  Executive Officer) 
 
Date: March 28, 2008                                          By:   /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                  ------------------------------------ ------------------- 
                                                                    Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                    Executive VP and Chief Financial O fficer 
                                                                    (Principal Financial and Principal  Accounting Officer) 
 
 
         In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following perso ns on behalf of the 
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates i ndicated. 
 
SIGNATURES                                           CAPACITIES                             DATE 
----------                                           ----------                             ---- 
 
/s/ David W. Bomboy                                  Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Michael Chancellor                               Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ M. Ray "Hoppy" Cole, Jr.                         President and                           March 28,  2008 
-------------------------------------                Director 
 
/s/ E. Ricky Gibson                                  Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Peeler G. Lacey, M.D.                            Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Charles R. Lightsey                              Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Fred A. McMurry                                  Director                                March 28 , 2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Gregory M. Mitchell                              Director                                March 28 , 2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Ted Parker                                       Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ Gerald C. Patch                                  Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ J. Douglas Seidenburg                            Director                                March 28,  2008 



-------------------------------------                Vice-Chairman 
 
/s/ Ralph T. Simmons                                 Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
/s/ A. L. Smith                                      Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
 /s/ Dennis Pierce                                   Director                                March 28 ,2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
 /s/ Andrew D. Stetelman                             Director                                March 28,  2008 
------------------------------------- 
 
 /s/ David E. Johnson                                Chairman, CEO                           March 28,  2008 
-------------------------------------                Director (Principal 
                                                     Executive Officer) 
 
 
 /s/ Dee Dee Lowery                                  Executive VP & Chief Financial          March 28,  2008 
-------------------------------------                Officer (Principal Financial 
                                                     and Accounting Officer) 
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MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF  
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

Purpose  

The purpose of management’s discussion and analysis  is to make the reader aware of the significant com ponents, events, and changes 
in the consolidated financial condition and results  of operations of the Company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 
December 31, 2007. The Company’s consolidated finan cial statements and related notes should also be co nsidered.  

Critical Accounting Policies  

In the preparation of the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements, certain significant amounts are  based upon judgment and 
estimates. The most critical of these is the accoun ting policy related to the allowance for loan losse s. The allowance is based in 
large measure upon management’s evaluation of borro wers’ abilities to make loan payments, local and na tional economic conditions, 
and other subjective factors. If any of these facto rs were to deteriorate, management would update its  estimates and judgments 
which may require additional loss provisions.  

Overview  

The Company was incorporated on June 23, 1995, and serves as a financial holding company for The First , A National Banking 
Association ( “The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First began operations on August 5, 1996, from its main office 
in the Oak Grove community, which is on the western  side of Hattiesburg. The First currently operates its main office and two 
branches in Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Purv is, one in Picayune, one in Pascagoula, one in Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins and 
one in Gulfport, Mississippi. The Company and its s ubsidiary bank engage in a general commercial and r etail banking business 
characterized by personalized service and local dec ision-making, emphasizing the banking needs of smal l to medium- sized businesses, 
professional concerns, and individuals. The First i s a wholly-owned subsidiary bank of the Company.  

The Company’s primary source of revenue is interest  income and fees, which it earns by lending and inv esting the funds which are 
held on deposit. Because loans generally earn highe r rates of interest than investments, the Company s eeks to employ as much of its 
deposit funds as possible in the form of loans to i ndividuals, businesses, and other organizations. To  ensure sufficient liquidity, 
the Company also maintains a portion of its deposit s in cash, government securities, deposits with oth er financial institutions, 
and overnight loans of excess reserves (known as “F ederal Funds sold”) to correspondent banks. The rev enue which the Company earns 
(prior to deducting its overhead expenses) is essen tially a function of the amount of the Company’s lo ans and deposits, as well as 
the profit margin (“interest spread”) and fee incom e which can be generated on these amounts.  

The Company grew from approximately $417.8 million in total assets, $287.9 million in loans, $351.7 mi llion in deposits, and $32.4 
million in shareholders’ equity at December 31, 200 6 to approximately $496.1 million in total assets, $371.2 million in loans, 
$386.2 million in deposits, and $36.3 million in sh areholders’ equity at December 31, 2007. The First reported net income of 
$4,031,000 and $3,697,000 for the years ended Decem ber 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively. For the years  ended December 31, 2007 and 
2006, the Company reported consolidated net income of $3,823,000 and $3,315,000, respectively. The fol lowing discussion should be 
read in conjunction with the “Selected Consolidated  Financial Data” and the Company’s Consolidated Fin ancial Statements and the 
Notes thereto and the other financial data included  elsewhere.  

The following table demonstrates the Company’s grow th during each calendar year.  

                                    SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
                                   (Dollars In Thou sands, Except Per Share Data)  
 
                                                                       December 31, 
                                   ---------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------- 
                                        2007             2006              2005              2004             2003 
                                   ----------------  ---------------- ----------------- --------------- -- ---------------- 
Earnings: 
   Net interest income               $  18,256        $  14,383         $  10,150         $   7,815        $   7,309 
   Provision for loan Losses             1,321              800               921               672              468 
 
   Noninterest income                    3,189            2,239             1,682             1,963            1,772 
   Noninterest expense                  14,823           11,138             8,138             7,228            7,134 
   Net income                            3,823            3,315             1,909             1,243            1,007 
 
Per share data: 
   Basic net income per Share        $    1.28        $    1.35         $     .81         $     .53        $     .43 
   Diluted net income per Share           1.25             1.27               .77               .51              .41 
 
Selected Year End 
  Balances: 
     Total assets                    $ 496,056        $ 417,769         $ 294,390         $ 212,396        $ 164,941 
     Securities                         87,052           91,810            50,660            28,522           31,445 
     Loans, net of Allowance           367,002          284,082           197,943           162,716          114,076 
     Deposits                          386,168          351,722           241,949           156,830          121,698 
     Stockholders' equity               36,281           32,365            18,478            16,740           15,651 
 
 

                                    Results of Operations  
 
         The  following  is a summary of the result s of  operations  by The First for the years ended  December 31, 
2007 and 2006. 
 
                                                 20 07                2006 
                                          --------- ---------------------------- 
                                                      (In thousands) 
 



Interest income                              $   33 ,382          $   23,736 
Interest expense                                 14 ,743               8,671 
                                             ------ ----          ---------- 
    Net interest income                          18 ,639              15,065 
 
Provision for loan losses                        1, 321                 800 
                                             ------ ----          ---------- 
Net interest income after 
  provision for loan losses                      17 ,318              14,265 
                                             ------ ----          ---------- 
 
Other income                                      2 ,880               2,005 
 
Other expense                                    14 ,446              10,844 
 
Income tax expense                                1 ,721               1,729 
                                             ------ ----          ---------- 
 
    Net income                               $    4 ,031          $    3,697 
                                             ====== ====          ========== 
 
 
         The following reconciles the above table t o the amounts reflected in the consolidated financi al 
statements of the Company at December 31, 2007 and 2006: 
 
 
 
 
                                                 20 07                2006 
                                          --------- ------------------------------ 
                                                      (In thousands) 
 
Net interest income: 
    Net income of subsidiary bank            $   18 ,639          $   15,065 
    Intercompany eliminations                     ( 383)               (682) 
                                              ----- ----           --------- 
                                             $   18 ,256          $   14,383 
                                              ===== ====           ========= 
 
Net income: 
    Net income of subsidiary bank            $    4 ,031          $    3,697 
    Net loss of the Company, excluding 
       Intercompany accounts                      ( 208)               (382) 
                                              ----- ----           --------- 
                                             $    3 ,823          $    3,315 
                                              ===== ====           ========= 
 

Consolidated Net Income  

The Company reported consolidated net income of $3, 823,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compa red to a consolidated net 
income of $3,315,000 for the year ended December 31 , 2006. This was the result of an increase in inter est income of $9,640,000 due 
to the continued growth of earning assets. The incr ease in income was partially offset by a net increa se in noninterest expense of 
$3,684,000, which was the result of anticipated sta ff additions and other operating costs related to t he growth of the subsidiary 
bank and the opening of the new location in Gulfpor t.  

Consolidated Net Interest Income  

The largest component of net income for the Company  is net interest income, which is the difference be tween the income earned on 
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowings  used to support such assets. Net interest income i s determined by the rates 
earned on the Company’s interest-earning assets and  the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities , the relative amounts of 
interest-earning assets and interest- bearing liabilities, and the degree of mismatch and  the maturity and repricing characteristics 
of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing  liabilities.  

Consolidated net interest income was $18,256,000 fo r the year ended December 31, 2007, as compared to $14,383,000 for the year 
ended December 31, 2006. This increase was the dire ct result of an increase in average earning assets for the year 2007 to 
$434,096,000 compared to $315,217,000 for the year 2006. This increase in earning assets was funded by  an increase in deposits and 
by Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) borrowings. Deposi ts at December 31, 2007, totaled $386,168,000 compa red to $351,722,000 at 
December 31, 2006. Average interest-bearing liabili ties for the year 2007 were $366,567,000 compared t o $262,165,000 for the year 
2006. At December 31, 2007, the net interest spread , the difference between the yield on earning asset s and the rates paid on 
interest-bearing liabilities, was 3.56% compared to  3.96% at December 31, 2006. The net interest margi n (which is net interest 
income divided by average earning assets) was 4.21%  for the year 2007 compared to 4.56% for the year 2 006. Rates paid on average 
interest-bearing liabilities increased from 3.58% f or the year 2006 to 4.13% for the year 2007. Intere st earned on assets and 
interest accrued on liabilities is significantly in fluenced by market factors, specifically interest r ates as set by Federal 
agencies. Average loans comprised 77.9% of average earning assets for the year 2007 compared to 75.4% for the year 2006.  

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates . The following tables depict, for the periods indi cated, certain information 
related to the average balance sheet and average yi elds on assets and average costs of liabilities. Su ch yields are derived by 
dividing income or expense by the average balance o f the corresponding assets or liabilities. Average balances have been derived 
from daily averages.  

 
 
                                 Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates  



 
                                                                           Years Ended December 31, 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                              2007                              2006                              2005 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
                                Average     Income/      Yield/     Average    Income/     Yield/     A verage    Income/     Yield/ 
                                 Balance    Expense s     Rate      Balance    Expenses     Rate      B alance    Expenses     Rate 
                                ------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
Assets                                                                 (Dollars in thousands)  
Earning Assets 
      Loans (1)(2)               $338,368     $28,7 32      8.49%   $237,578     $19,976      8.41%   $ 189,187     $14,097    7.45% 
                                   90,638       4,4 03      4.86%     65,795       3,195      4.86%     30,985       1,170    3.78% 
Securities 
      Federal funds sold            4,478         2 32      5.18%     11,000         545      4.95%     10,564         388    3.67% 
      Other                           612          32      5.23%        844          44      5.21%        829          37    4.46% 
                                 --------     ----- --     ------   --------     -------     ------   - -------     -------   ------ 
 
    Total earning assets          434,096      33,3 99      7.69%    315,217      23,760      7.54%    231,565      15,692    6.78% 
                                 --------     ----- --     ------   --------     -------     ------   - -------     -------   ------ 
 
    Cash and due from banks         9,570                            10,352                             8,380 
       Premises and equipment      15,553                             8,561                             8,478 
       Other assets                 9,158                             9,158                             6,507 
       Allowance for loan 
          losses                   (4,160)                           (2,848)                           (2,017) 
                                 --------                          --------                          - ------- 
      Total assets               $464,217                          $340,440                          $ 252,913 
                                 ========                          ========                          = ======= 
 
Liabilities 
      Interest-bearing 
          liabilities            $366,567     $15,1 43      4.13%   $262,165     $ 9,377      3.58%   $ 195,382     $ 5,543    2.84% 
                                              ----- --                           -------                           ------- 
      Demand deposits (1)          61,565                            55,639                            38,766 
      Other liabilities             2,691                             2,282                             1,487 
 
      Shareholders' equity         33,394                            20,354                            17,278 
                                 --------                          --------                          - ------- 
 
      Total liabilities and 
      shareholders' equity       $464,217                          $340,440                          $ 252,913 
                                 ========                          ========                          = ======= 
 
           Net interest spread                             3.56%                             3.96%                           3.94% 
 
   Net yield on interest-earning 
   Assets                                     $18,2 56      4.21%                $14,383      4.56%                $10,149    4.38% 
                                              ===== ==                           =======                           ======= 
 
____________________ 
 
(1)  All loans and deposits were made to borrowers in the United States.  The Company had no significa nt nonaccrual loans 
     during the periods presented.  Loans include h eld for sale loans. 
(2)  Includes loan fees of $1,136, $976, and $755  respectively. 
 
 

Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Income . The following table presents the consolidated dol lar amount of changes in interest 
income and interest expense attributable to changes  in volume and to changes in rate. The combined eff ect in both volume and rate 
which cannot be separately identified has been allo cated proportionately to the change due to volume a nd due to rate.  

                              Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest In come 
 
                                            Year Ended December 31,         Year Ended December  31, 
                                          --------- --------------------   ----------------------------  
                                                200 7 versus 2006               2006 versus 2005 
                                           Increase  (decrease) due to     Increase (decrease) due to 
                                          --------- --------------------   ----------------------------  
                                           Volume    Rate       Net       Volume     Rate      Net 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
                                                            (Dollars in thousands)  
Earning Assets  
   Loans............................       $ 8,475   $  281   $  8,756    $ 3,605   $ 2,274   $ 5,879 
   Securities.......................         1,206        2      1,208      1,316       709     2,025 
   Federal funds sold ..............         (323)       10      (313)         16       141       157 
   Other short-term investments ....          (12)       -        (12)          1         6         7 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
     Total interest income .........         9,346      293      9,639      4,938     3,130     8,068 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
Interest-Bearing Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing transaction 
      accounts......................           660      716      1,376        507        44       551 
   Money market accounts............            60      251        311         51       224       275 
   Savings deposits.................            50       22         72        129        80       209 
   Time deposits....................         2,397    1,266      3,663      1,300     1,224     2,524 
   Borrowed funds...................           549    (205)        344        118       156       274 
                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
   Total interest expense...........         3,716    2,050      5,766      2,105     1,728     3,833 



                                          ---------  -------- ----------   -------- --------- ---------  
   Net interest income..............       $ 5,630  $(1,757)  $  3,873    $ 2,833   $ 1,402   $ 4,235 
                                          =========  ======== ==========   ======== ========= =========  

Interest Sensitivity . The Company monitors and manages the pricing and maturity of its assets and liabilities in order to diminish 
the potential adverse impact that changes in intere st rates could have on its net interest income. A m onitoring technique employed 
by the Company is the measurement of the Company’s interest sensitivity “gap,” which is the positive o r negative dollar difference 
between assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate repricing within a given period of ti me. The Company also performs 
asset/liability modeling to assess the impact varyi ng interest rates and balance sheet mix assumptions  will have on net interest 
income. Interest rate sensitivity can be managed by  repricing assets or liabilities, selling securitie s available-for-sale, 
replacing an asset or liability at maturity, or adj usting the interest rate during the life of an asse t or liability. Managing the 
amount of assets and liabilities repricing in the s ame time interval helps to hedge the risk and minim ize the impact on net 
interest income of rising or falling interest rates . The Company evaluates interest sensitivity risk a nd then formulates guidelines 
regarding asset generation and repricing, funding s ources and pricing, and off-balance sheet commitmen ts in order to decrease 
interest rate sensitivity risk.  

         The following tables illustrate the Compan y's consolidated interest rate sensitivity and cons olidated 
cumulative gap position at December 31, 2005, 2006,  and 2007. 
 
 
 
                                                                    December 31, 2005 
                                           -------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                 Th ree       Twelve         One     One Year or 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive       Total 
                                                --- ---       ------        ----     ------------       ----- 
                                                                   (Dollars in thousands)  
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................           81,679       29,211      110,890    $  89,419    $   200,309 
      Securities (2).....................            9,110        5,650       14,760       35,750        50,510 
      Funds sold and other...............           16,639          105       16,744            -        16,744 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
        Total earning assets.............          107,428       34,966      142,394      125,169       267,563 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities: 
   Interest-bearing deposits: 
      NOW accounts (1)...................        $       -    $  29,160    $  29,160      $     -     $  29,160 
      Money market accounts..............           33,122            -       33,122            -        33,122 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............                -       17,786       17,786            -        17,786 
      Time deposits......................           11,832       74,169       86,001       26,295       112,296 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.           44,954      121,115      166,069       26,295       192,364 
   Borrowed funds........................                -        3,999        3,999       21,466        25,465 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities               44,954      125,114      170,068       47,761       217,829 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
      Interest-sensitivity gap per period...     $  62,474    $(90,148)    $(27,674)     $ 77,408     $  49,734 
                                                === =======    =========   ==========    =========    = ========= 
     Cumulative gap at December 31, 2005....     $  62,474    $(27,674)    $(27,674)     $ 49,734     $  49,734 
                                                === =======    =========   ==========    =========    = ========= 
     Ratio of cumulative gap to total 
      earning assets at  December 31, 2005..         23.3%      (10.3%)      (10.3%)        18.6% 
 
                                                                    December 31, 2006 
                                           -------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                 Th ree       Twelve         One     One Year or 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive       Total 
                                                --- ---       ------        ----     ------------       ----- 
                                                                   (Dollars in thousands)  
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................        $  99,026    $  46,459   $  145,485   $  142,390   $  287,875 
      Securities (2).....................            6,203        9,954       16,157       75,653       91,810 
      Funds sold and other...............            9,225          219        9,444            -        9,444 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
        Total earning assets.............          114,454       56,632      171,086      218,043      389,129 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities: 
   Interest-bearing deposits: 
      NOW accounts (1)...................         $       -    $  61,673   $   61,673     $      -   $   61,673 
      Money market accounts..............           35,592            -       35,592            -       35,592 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............                -       20,621       20,621            -       20,621 
      Time deposits......................           22,242      122,933      145,175       30,009      175,184 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.           57,834      205,227      263,061       30,009      293,070 
   Borrowed funds........................              750        4,153        4,903       15,924       20,827 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities....           58,584      209,380      267,964       45,933      313,897 
                                                --- -------    ---------   ----------    ---------    - --------- 



   Interest-sensitivity gap per period...        $  55,870  $ (152,748)  $  (96,878)   $  172,010    $   75,132 
                                                === =======    =========   ==========    =========    = ========= 
   Cumulative gap at December 31, 2006...        $  55,870  $  (96,878)  $  (96,878)    $  75,132    $   75,132 
                                                === =======    =========   ==========    =========    = ========= 
   Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning 
      assets at December 31, 2006 .......            14.4%      (24.9%)      (24.9%)        19.3% 
 

                                                                    December 31, 2006 
                                           -------- --------------------------------------------------- ---------- 
                                                           After Three 
                                                Wit hin       Through      Within    Greater Than 
                                                 Th ree       Twelve         One     One Year or 
                                                Mon ths       Months        Year     Nonsensitive       Total 
                                                --- ---       ------        ----     ------------       ----- 
                                                                   (Dollars in thousands)  
Assets  
   Earning Assets: 
      Loans..............................        $1 40,579   $   59,868   $  200,447   $  170,776   $  371,223 
      Securities (2).....................           8,011        6,721       14,732       72,320       87,052 
      Funds sold and other...............             223          228          451            -          451 
                                                --- ------   ----------   ----------   ----------   --- ------- 
        Total earning assets.............         1 48,813       66,817      215,630      243,096      458,726 
                                                --- ------   ----------   ----------   ----------   --- ------- 
Liabilities  
   Interest-bearing liabilities 
   Interest-bearing deposits 
      NOW accounts (1)...................        $      -    $  73,398    $  73,398     $      -    $  73,398 
      Money market accounts..............          38,820            -       38,820            -       38,820 
      Savings deposits (1) ..............               -       20,934       20,934            -       20,934 
      Time deposits......................          58,049      123,616      181,665       16,002      197,667 
                                                --- ------   ----------   ----------   ----------   --- ------- 
         Total interest-bearing deposits.          96,869      217,948      314,817       16,002      330,819 
   Borrowed funds (3)....................          17,052       12,693       29,745       31,027       60,772 
                                                --- ------   ----------   ----------   ----------   --- ------- 
   Total interest-bearing liabilities....         1 13,921      230,641      344,562       47,029      391,591 
                                                --- ------   ----------   ----------   ----------   --- ------- 
   Interest-sensitivity gap per period...        $ 34,892   $(163,824)   $(128,932)     $196,067    $  67,135 
                                                === ======   ==========   ==========   ==========   === ======= 
   Cumulative gap at December 31, 2007...        $  34,892  $(128,932)   $(128,932)     $ 67,135    $  67,135 
                                                === ======   ==========   ==========   ==========   === ======= 
   Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning 
      assets at December 31, 2007 .......             7.6%     (28.1%)      (28.1%)        14.6% 
 
_________________________ 
 
 
(1)  NOW and savings accounts are subject to immedi ate withdrawal and repricing.  These deposits do no t tend 
     to immediately react to changes in interest ra tes and the Company believes these deposits are a s table and 
     predictable funding source.  Therefore, these deposits are included in the repricing period that management 
     believes most closely matches the periods in w hich they are likely to reprice rather than the per iod in 
     which the funds can be withdrawn contractually . 
(2)  Securities include mortgage backed and other i nstallment paying obligations based upon stated mat urity dates. 
(3)  Does not include subordinated debentures of $1 0,310,000. 

The Company generally would benefit from increasing  market rates of interest when it has an asset-sens itive gap and generally from 
decreasing market rates of interest when it is liab ility sensitive. The Company currently is liability  sensitive within the one-
year time frame. However, the Company’s gap analysi s is not a precise indicator of its interest sensit ivity position. The analysis 
presents only a static view of the timing of maturi ties and repricing opportunities, without taking in to consideration that changes 
in interest rates do not affect all assets and liab ilities equally. For example, rates paid on a subst antial portion of core 
deposits may change contractually within a relative ly short time frame, but those rates are viewed by management as significantly 
less interest-sensitive than market-based rates suc h as those paid on non-core deposits. Accordingly, management believes a 
liability sensitive-position within one year would not be as indicative of the Company’s true interest  sensitivity as it would be 
for an organization which depends to a greater exte nt on purchased funds to support earning assets. Ne t interest income is also 
affected by other significant factors, including ch anges in the volume and mix of earning assets and i nterest-bearing liabilities.  

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses  

The Company has developed policies and procedures f or evaluating the overall quality of its credit por tfolio and the timely 
identification of potential problem loans. Manageme nt’s judgment as to the adequacy of the allowance i s based upon a number of 
assumptions about future events which it believes t o be reasonable, but which may not prove to be accu rate, particularly given the 
Company’s short operating history and rapid growth.  Thus, there can be no assurance that charge-offs i n future periods will not 
exceed the allowance for loan losses or that additi onal increases in the loan loss allowance will not be required.  

Additions to the allowance for loan losses, which a re reported as the provision for loan losses on the  Company ’s consolidated 
statements of income, are made periodically to main tain the allowance at an appropriate level based on  management’ s analysis of the 
potential risk in the loan portfolio. The allowance  consists of two components: allocated and unalloca ted. The allocated portion of 
the allowance is based upon specific allocations to  specific loans, including impaired loans, and upon  historical loan loss 
experience of the bank and its peer group ratios. D ue to minimal loss history in various sections of t he loan loss portfolio, 
management has elected to integrate the loss experi ence of the bank’s peer groups in determining an ap propriate allowance based on 
the various loan types within the bank’s loan portf olio.  

The unallocated component reflects management’ s estimate of the probable inherent but undetected losses within the portfolio due to 
uncertainties about economic conditions, changes in  collateral values and borrower financial condition , expansion into new markets, 



as well as other risk factors that have not yet man ifested themselves.  

The amount of the provision is a function of the le vel of loans outstanding, the level of nonperformin g loans, historical loan loss 
experience, the amount of loan losses actually char ged against the allowance during a given period, an d current and anticipated 
economic conditions.  

At December 31, 2007 the consolidated allowance for  loan losses amounted to $4,221,000, or 1.14% of ou tstanding loans. At December 
31, 2006, the allowance for loan losses amounted to  $3,793,000, which was 1.32% of outstanding loans a t December 31, 2006. The 
Company’s provision for loan losses was $1,321,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $ 800,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. In each year, the provision was made based on management’s assessment of general lo an loss risk and asset 
quality.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on curren t information and events, it is probable that the C orporation will be unable to 
collect the scheduled payments of principal or inte rest when due according to the contractual terms of  the loan agreement. Factors 
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the p robability of collecting 
scheduled principal and interest payments when due.  Loans that experience insignificant payment delays  and payment shortfalls 
generally are not classified as impaired. Managemen t determines the significance of payment delays and  payment shortfalls on a 
case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all o f the circumstances surrounding the loan and the bo rrower, including the length 
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrow er’s prior payment record, and the amount of the sh ortfall in relation to the 
principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured  on a loan by loan basis generally using the fair v alue of the collateral if the 
loan is collateral dependent. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, loans considered impaired were the same a s nonaccrual loans as 
described in the following paragraph.  

The Company discontinues accrual of interest on loa ns when management believes, after considering econ omic and business conditions 
and collection efforts, that a borrower’s financial  condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful. Generally, the 
Company will place a delinquent loan in nonaccrual status when the loan becomes 90 days or more past d ue. At the time a loan is 
placed in nonaccrual status, all interest which has  been accrued on the loan but remains unpaid is rev ersed and deducted from 
earnings as a reduction of reported interest income . No additional interest is accrued on the loan bal ance until the collection of 
both principal and interest becomes reasonably cert ain. The Company had nonaccrual loans of $2,429,000  and $1,789,000 and no 
restructured or other nonperforming loans at Decemb er 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December 31,  2007 the Company had loans 
in the principal amount of $4,686,000 delinquent 30  to 89 days, and loans of approximately $994,000 th at were delinquent 90 days or 
more and still accruing. At December 31, 2006, the Company had loans in the principal amount of $3,035 ,000 delinquent by 30 to 89 
days, and loans of approximately $118,000 that were  delinquent by 90 days and still accruing.  

A potential problem loan is one in which management  has serious doubts about the borrower ’s future performance under the terms of 
the loan contract. These loans are current as to pr incipal and interest and, accordingly, they are not  included in nonperforming 
assets categories. The level of potential problem l oans is one factor used in the determination of the  adequacy of the allowance 
for loan losses. At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the subsidiary bank had potential problem  loans of $9,558,070 and 
$7,691,231, respectively. This represents an increa se of $1,866,839 which is attributable to one speci fic loan relationship. As of 
March 14, 2008 problem loans decreased to $8,165,86 7.  

Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses  

                                                                                Years Ended December 3 1, 
                                                              ---------------------------------------- --------------------------- 
                                                                   2007         2006         2005         2004         2003 
                                                              -----------   ----------   ----------    ---------     ------------ 
 
Average loans outstanding........................              $  338,368   $  237,578   $  189,187    $ 140,052     $   112,468  
                                                              ===========   ==========   ==========    =========     ============ 
Loans outstanding at period end..................              $  371,223   $  287,875   $  200,310      164,374     $   115,242 
                                                              ===========   ==========   ==========    =========     ============ 
Total nonperforming loans........................                   2,429        1,789          283          361             197 
                                                              ===========   ==========   ==========    =========     ============ 
Beginning balance of allowance...................                   3,793        2,367        1,659        1,166           1,228 
 
Loans charged-off................................                   (950)        (186)        (303)        (291)           (603) 
                                                              -----------   ----------   ----------    ---------     ------------ 
Total loans charged-off..........................                   (950)        (186)        (303)        (291)           (603) 
                                                              -----------   ----------   ----------    ---------     ------------ 
Total recoveries.................................                      57          107           90          112              73 
                                                              -----------   ----------   ----------    ---------     ------------ 
Net loans charged-off............................                   (893)         (79)        (213)        (179)           (530) 
Acquisition......................................                       -          705            -            -               - 
 
Provision for loan losses........................                   1,321          800       921             672             468 
                                                              -----------   ----------   ----------    ---------     ------------ 
Balance at period end............................               $   4,221    $   3,793  $  2,367        $  1,659     $     1,166 
                                                              ===========   ==========   ==========    =========     ============ 
Net charge-offs to average loans.................                    .26%         .03%         .11%         .13%            .47% 
Allowance as percent of total loans..............                   1.14%        1.32%        1.18%        1.01%           1.01%  
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of total loans                   .65%         .62%         .14%         .22%            .17% 
Allowance as a multiple of nonperforming loans...                    1.7X         2.1X         8.4X         4.6X            5.9X  

At December 31, 2007, the components of the allowan ce for loan losses consisted of the  
 
 
 
 
                                                                                      Allowance 
                                                                                      --------- 
                                                                                   (In thousands) 
                     Allocated: 
                       Impaired loans                                                $    1,052 



                       Graded loans                                                       3,169 
                                                                                     ---------- 
                                                                                     $    4,221 
                                                                                     ========== 
 
 
Graded loans are those loans or pools of loans assi gned a grade by internal loan review. 

Noninterest Income and Expense  

Noninterest Income .     The Company’s primary source of noninterest i ncome is service charges on deposit accounts. Other  sources 
of noninterest income include bankcard fees, commis sions on check sales, safe deposit box rent, wire t ransfer fees, official check 
fees and bank owned life insurance income.  

Noninterest income increased by $950,000 or 42.4% f rom $2,239,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 , to $3,189,000 for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. The deposit activity fees were $1,878,000 for 2007 compared to $1,318,000 for  2006. Other service charges 
increased by $230,000 or 46.9% from $490,000 for th e year ended December 31, 2006, to $720,000 for the  year ended December 31, 
2007.  

Noninterest expense increased from $11.1 million fo r the year ended December 31, 2006 to $14.8 million  for the year ended December 
31, 2007. The Company experienced increases in most  expense categories, which reflects the continued g rowth of the Company. The 
largest increase was in salary and employee benefit s, which increased by $2.3 million in 2007 as compa red to 2006. This increase 
included normal merit increases in salaries as well  as the employment of additional employees througho ut 2007, as well as staffing 
a new location.  

The following table sets forth the primary componen ts of noninterest expense for the periods indicated :  

Noninterest Expense  
 
                                                                              Years ended December 31, 
                                                                         ----------------------------- --- 
                                                                             2007        2006     2005  
                                                                             ----        ----     ----  
                                                                                  (In thousands)  
 
Salaries and employee benefits..................... ...............         $ 8,962    $ 6,613    $ 4,8 16 
Occupancy.......................................... ...............             983        746        5 85 
Equipment.......................................... ...............           1,008        858        7 68 
Marketing and public relations..................... ...............             323        320        2 07 
Data processing.................................... ...............              89        199        1 50 
Supplies and printing.............................. ...............             402        311        1 94 
Telephone.......................................... ...............             162        114         66 
Correspondent services............................. ...............             106        102         72 
Deposit and other insurance........................ ...............             283        144        1 49 
Professional and consulting fees................... ...............             506        407        2 87 
Postage............................................ ...............             181        128        1 08 
ATM fees........................................... ...............             204        110         77 
Other.............................................. ...............           1,614      1,086        6 59 
                                                                          --------   --------    ----- -- 
     Total......................................... ...............         $14,823   $ 11,138    $ 8,1 38 
                                                                          ========   ========    ===== == 

Income Tax Expense  

Income tax expense consists of two components. The first is the current tax expense which represents t he expected income tax to be 
paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recogn izes deferred tax for future deductible amounts res ulting from differences in 
the financial statement and tax bases of assets and  liabilities.  

Analysis of Financial Condition  

Earning Assets  

Loans .     Loans typically provide higher yields than th e other types of earning assets, and thus one of th e Company’s goals is 
for loans to be the largest category of the Company ’s earning assets. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, r espectively, loans accounted 
for 80% and 74% of earning assets. Management attem pts to control and counterbalance the inherent cred it and liquidity risks 
associated with the higher loan yields without sacr ificing asset quality to achieve its asset mix goal s. Loans averaged $338.4 
million during 2007, as compared to $237.6 million during 2006, and $189.2 million during 2005, reflec ting the substantial growth 
of the Company during the period.  

The following table shows the composition of the lo an portfolio by category:  

                                           Composition of Loan Portfolio  
 
                                                                              December 31, 
                                                  - --------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 
                                                            2007                   2006                   2005 
                                                  - ----------------------  ---------------------- ---- ------------------- 
                                                                 Percent                  Percent                Percent 
                                                     Amount     Of Total     Amount      of Total     Amount    of Total 
                                                  - ----------------------  ----------------------   -- ------------------- 
                                                                           (Dollars in thousands)  
 
   Mortgage loans held for sale...................   $  5,664       1.5%      $  3,945       1.4%    $  3,319       1.7% 
   Commercial, financial and agricultural ........     46,633      12.6%        36,258      12.6%     30,576      15.3% 
   Real Estate: 



      Mortgage-commercial.........................     84,854      22.9%        63,698      22.2%     48,335      24.1% 
      Mortgage-residential........................    112,676      30.3%        94,840      32.9%     68,148      34.0% 
      Construction................................    100,634      27.1%        69,420      24.1%     37,660      18.8% 
   Consumer and other.............................     20,762       5.6%        19,714       6.8%     12,271       6.1% 
                                                  - ----------------------  ----------------------   -- ------------------- 
   Total loans....................................    371,223       100%       287,875       100%    2 00,309     100.0% 
                                                                =========                 =======              ========== 
   Allowance for loan losses......................    (4,221)                  (3,793)               ( 2,367) 
                                                  - ----------------------  ----------------------   -- ------------------- 
   Net loans......................................  $ 367,002                 $284,082              $1 97,942 
                                                  = ==========              ===========              == ====== 

In the context of this discussion, a “real estate m ortgage loan” is defined as any loan, other than lo ans for construction 
purposes, secured by real estate, regardless of the  purpose of the loan. The Company follows the commo n practice of financial 
institutions in the Company’s market area of obtain ing a security interest in real estate whenever pos sible, in addition to any 
other available collateral. This collateral is take n to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimate repay ment of the loan and tends to 
increase the magnitude of the real estate loan port folio component. Generally, the Company limits its loan-to-value ratio to 80%. 
Management attempts to maintain a conservative phil osophy regarding its underwriting guidelines and be lieves it will reduce the 
risk elements of its loan portfolio through strateg ies that diversify the lending mix.  

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans origi nated by the bank and sold into the secondary marke t. Commitments from investors 
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination .  

The following table sets forth the Company’s commer cial and construction real estate loans maturing wi thin specified intervals at 
December 31, 2007.  

                Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changes i n Interest Rates  
 
                                                                December 31, 2006 
                                                --- ------------------------------------------------- 
                                                             Over One Year 
                                                 On e Year       Through       Over Five 
                     Type                        or  Less       Five Years       Years       Total 
----------------------------------------------- --- -------   --------------   ----------   --------- 
                                                              (Dollars in thousands)  
 
Commercial, financial and agricultural........   $  24,844     $   20,543      $  1,246    $  46,633 
Real estate - construction....................     100,634              -             -      100,634 
                                                --- -------   --------------   ----------   --------- 
                                                 $ 125,478     $   20,543      $  1,246    $ 147,267 
                                                === =======   ==============   ==========   ========= 
 
Loans maturing after one year with: 
Fixed interest rates..........................                                             $  18,112 
Floating interest rates.......................                                                 3,677 
                                                                                           --------- 
                                                                                           $  21,789 
                                                                                           ========= 

The information presented in the above table is bas ed on the contractual maturities of the individual loans, including loans which 
may be subject to renewal at their contractual matu rity. Renewal of such loans is subject to review an d credit approval, as well as 
modification of terms upon their maturity.  

Investment Securities .     The investment securities portfolio is a sign ificant component of the Company’s total earning as sets. 
Total securities averaged $90.6 million in 2007, as  compared to $65.8 million in 2006 and $31.0 millio n in 2005. This represents 
20.9%, 20.9%, and 13.4% of the average earning asse ts for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and  2005, respectively. At 
December 31, 2007, investment securities were $87.1  million and represented 19.0% of earning assets. T he Company attempts to 
maintain a portfolio of high quality, highly liquid  investments with returns competitive with short te rm U.S. Treasury or agency 
obligations. This objective is particularly importa nt as the Company continues to grow its loan portfo lio. The Company primarily 
invests in securities of U.S. Government agencies, municipals, and corporate obligations with maturiti es up to five years.  

The following table summarizes the book value of se curities for the dates indicated.  

                                               Securities Portfolio  
 
                                                                  December 31, 
                                                     --------------------------------------- 
                                                         2007          2006         2005 
                                                         ----          ----         ---- 
                                                                 (In thousands)  
Available -for-sale 
    U. S. Government agencies.................        $ 58,080       $ 69,453    $ 39,904 
    States and municipal subdivisions.........          21,224         15,474       5,879 
    Corporate obligations.....................           3,859          3,448       2,760 
      Mutual finds ...........................           1,156          1,105           - 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
      Total available-for-sale................          84,319         89,480      48,543 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
Held-to-maturity 
    U.S. Government agencies..................              13             13          14 
                                                      --------       --------    -------- 
Total.........................................        $ 84,332       $ 89,493    $ 48,557 
                                                      ========       ========    ======== 



         The following table shows, at carrying val ue, the scheduled maturities and average yields of securities 
held at December 31, 2007. 
 
 
 
                            Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yie lds (1)  
 
                                                                        December 31, 2007 
                                      ------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------------------- 
                                                               After One But         After Five But 
                                        Within One Year      Within Five Years      Within Ten Years      After Ten Years 
                                      ------------- ------   -------------------   -------------------   --------------------- 
                                       Amount      Yield     Amount      Yield     Amount      Yield     Amount      Yield 
                                      -------      ------   --------     ------   --------     ------   --------     -------- 
Held-to-maturity: 
   U.S. Government agencies (2)...... $     -         -     $    -          -     $     -          -     $    -          - 
Available -for-sale: 
 
   U.S. Government agencies (3)...... $ 7,756      4.43%    $24,473      4.62%    $ 1,034      6.02%     $    -          - 
   States and municipal subdivisions.     877      3.23%      7,152      3.63%      8,337      3.96%      4,858      4.32% 
   Corporate obligations and other...       -          -        957      6.55%          -          -      4,059      6.89% 
                                      -------      -----    -------     ------    -------      -----     ------      ----- 
 
Total investment securities 
   available-for-sale................ $ 8,633               $32,582               $ 9,371                $8,917 
                                      =======               =======               =======                ====== 
 
____________________ 
 
(1)  Investments with a call feature are shown as o f the contractual maturity date. 
(2)  Excludes mortgage-backed securities totaling $ 13 with a yield of 7.2%. 
(3)  Excludes mortgage-backed securities totaling $ 24.8 million with a yield of 5.28% and 
       mutual funds of $1.2 million. 

Short-Term Investments .     Short- term investments, consisting of Federal Funds sold,  averaged $4.5 million in 2007, $11.0 million 
in 2006, and $10.6 million in 2005. At December 31,  2007, and December 31, 2006, short-term investment s totaled $223,000 and 
$8,772,000 respectively. These funds are a primary source of the Company’s liquidity and are generally  invested in an earning 
capacity on an overnight basis.  

Deposits  

Deposits .     Average total deposits increased $84.9 millio n, or 42.8% in 2006. Average total deposits increas ed $99.7 million, or 
35.2% in 2007. At December 31, 2007, total deposits  were $386.2 million, compared to $351.7 million a year earlier, an increase of 
9.8%.  

The following table sets forth the deposits of the Company by category for the period indicated. 
 
 
 
                                                                Deposits  
 
                                                                                 December 31, 
                                     -------------- ------- ---------------------- -------------------- - 
                                             2007                  2006                   2005 
                                     -------------- ------- ---------------------- -------------------- - 
                                                  P ercent                Percent               Percent  
                                                    of                     of                    of 
                                        Amount    D eposits    Amount     Deposits    Amount    Deposit s 
                                     ----------  -- ------- ----------   --------- ----------  -------- - 
 
Noninterest-bearing accounts.....     $ 55,349      14.3%    $58,652       16.7%    $49,585      20.5%  
NOW accounts.....................       73,398      19.0%     61,673       17.5%     29,160      12.0%  
Money market accounts............       38,820      10.2%     35,592       10.1%     33,122      13.7%  
Savings accounts.................       20,934       5.4%     20,621        5.9%     17,786       7.4%  
Time deposits less than 
  $100,000....................... 
Time deposits of $100,000 or            93,213      24.1%     92,364       26.3%     61,907      25.6%  
  over...........................      104,454      27.0%     82,820       23.5%     50,389      20.8%  
                                     ----------  -- ------- ----------   --------- ----------  -------- - 
    Total deposits...............     $386,168       100%   $351,722        100%   $241,949 
                                                                                                  100%  
 

The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 94.7% at De cember 31, 2007 and 80.7% at December 31, 2006. The  loan-to-deposit ratio 
averaged 88% during 2007. Core deposits, which excl ude time deposits of $100,000 or more, provide a re latively stable funding 
source for the Company’s loan portfolio and other e arning assets. The Company’s core deposits were $28 1.7 million at December 31, 
2007 and $268.9 million at December 31, 2006. Manag ement anticipates that a stable base of deposits wi ll be the Company’s primary 
source of funding to meet both its short-term and l ong-term liquidity needs in the future. The Company  has purchased brokered 
deposits from time to time to help fund loan growth . Brokered deposits and jumbo certificates of depos it generally carry a higher 
interest rate than traditional core deposits. Furth er, brokered deposit customers typically do not hav e loan or other relationships 
with the Company. The Company has adopted a policy not to permit brokered deposits to represent more t han 10% of all of the 
Company’s deposits.  

The maturity distribution of the Company’s certific ates of deposit of $100,000 or more at December 31,  2007, is shown in the 
following table. The Company did not have any other  time deposits of $100,000 or more.  

                                       Maturities of Certificates of Deposit 



                                                of $100,000 or More  
 
                                                            After Three 
                                           Within T hree       Through       After Twelve 
                                              Month s       Twelve Months       Months            Total  
                                         ---------- ------ --------------- ---------------- ----------- ----- 
 
December 31, 2007....................        $  35, 119      $   63,602        $   5,733       $  104,4 54 

Borrowed Funds  

Borrowed funds consists of advances from the Federa l Home Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchased  and reverse repurchase 
agreements. At December 31, 2007, advances from the  FHLB totaled $32.9 million compared to $20.8 milli on at December 31, 2006. The 
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien on th e first mortgage loans in the amount of the outstan ding borrowings, FHLB capital 
stock, and amounts on deposit with the FHLB. Federa l funds purchased totaled $12.9 million at December  31, 2007 compared to none at 
December 31, 2006.  

Reverse Repurchase Agreements consists of three $5, 000,000 agreements. These agreements are secured by  securities with a fair value 
of $16,451,000 at December 31, 2007. The maturity d ates are from August 22, 2012 through September 26,  2017 with rates between 
3.81% and 4.51%.  

Subordinated Debentures  

In 2002, the Company issued subordinated debentures  of $7,217,000 to The First Bancshares Statutory Tr ust I (the Trust). The 
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Trus t. The Trust issued $7,000,000 of preferred securit ies to investors. The Company 
entered into this arrangement to provide funding fo r expected growth. These debentures were called on March 26, 2007.  

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentures  of $4,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Statut ory Trust 2 (Trust 2). The 
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Trus t 2. The Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferred sec urities to investors. The 
Company makes interest payments and will make princ ipal payments on the debentures to the Trust 2. The se payments will be the 
source of funds used to retire the preferred securi ties, which are redeemable at any time beginning in  2011 and mature in 2036. The 
Company entered into this arrangement to provide fu nding for expected growth.  

In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentures  of $6,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Statut ory Trust 3 (Trust 3). The 
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Trus t 3. The Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferred sec urities to investors. The 
Company makes interest payments and will make princ ipal payments on the debentures to the Trust 3. The se payments will be the 
source of funds used to retire the preferred securi ties, which are redeemable at any time beginning in  2012 and mature in 2037. The 
Company entered into this arrangement to provide fu nding for expected growth.  

Capital  

Total shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2007, was $36.3 million, an increase of $3.9 million or approximately 12.1%,  compared 
with shareholders’ equity of $32.4 million as of De cember 31, 2006.  

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory agenc ies require bank holding companies and financial in stitutions to maintain 
capital at adequate levels based on a percentage of  assets and off-balance sheet exposures, adjusted f or risk weights ranging from 
0% to 100%. Under the risk-based standard, capital is classified into two tiers. Tier 1 capital consis ts of common shareholders’ 
equity, excluding the unrealized gain (loss) on ava ilable-for-sale securities, minus certain intangibl e assets. Tier 2 capital 
consists of the general reserve for loan losses sub ject to certain limitations. An institution’s total  risk-based capital for 
purposes of its risk-based capital ratio consists o f the sum of its Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital. The ris k-based regulatory minimum 
requirements are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total ris k-based capital.  

Bank holding companies and banks are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on tot al assets, which is known as 
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement for the  leverage ratio is 3%. All but the highest rated in stitutions are required to 
maintain ratios 100 to 200 basis points above the m inimum. The Company and the subsidiary bank exceede d their minimum regulatory 
capital ratios as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.  

                                                    Analysis of Capital  
 
 
                                      Adequately      Well             The Company                   T he First 
Capital Ratios                        Capitalized  Capitalized         December 31,                 De cember 31, 
-----------------------------        ------------  ------------   -----------------------      ------- ---------------- 
                                                                     2007        2006             2007         2006 
                                                                     ----        ----             ----         ---- 
 
Leverage........................          4.0%        5.0%           9.1%       10.3%             8.7%         7.9% 
Risk-based capital: 
   Tier 1.......................          4.0%        6.0%          11.6%       13.7%            11.0%        10.6% 
   Total........................          8.0%       10.0%          12.7%       15.0%            12.1%        11.9% 
 
 
                                                            Ratios  
 
                                                        2007         2006          2005 
                                                        ----         ----          ---- 
Return on assets (net income divided by 
    average total assets)                               .82%         .97%          .75% 
 
Return on equity (net income divided by 
    average equity)                                    11.4%        16.3%         11.0% 
 
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per 



    share divided by net income per share)             41.0%        11.9%         12.3% 
 
Equity to asset ratio (average equity 
    divided  by average total assets)                   7.2%         6.0%          6.8% 

Liquidity Management  

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Compan y’s sources and uses of funds in order to meet its day-to-day cash flow 
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquidity re presents the ability of a company to convert assets  into cash or cash 
equivalents without significant loss and to raise a dditional funds by increasing liabilities. Liquidit y management is made more 
complicated because different balance sheet compone nts are subject to varying degrees of management co ntrol. For example, the 
timing of maturities of the investment portfolio is  very predictable and subject to a high degree of c ontrol at the time investment 
decisions are made. However, net deposit inflows an d outflows are far less predictable and are not sub ject to the same degree of 
control. Asset liquidity is provided by cash and as sets which are readily marketable, which can be ple dged, or which will mature in 
the near future. Liability liquidity is provided by  access to core funding sources, principally the ab ility to generate customer 
deposits in the Company’s market area.  

The Company’s Federal Funds sold position, which is  typically its primary source of liquidity, average d $4.5 million during the 
year ended December 31, 2007 and totaled $223,000 a t December 31, 2007. Also, the Company has availabl e advances from the Federal 
Home Loan Bank. Advances available are generally ba sed upon the amount of qualified first mortgage loa ns which can be used for 
collateral. At December 31, 2007, advances availabl e totaled approximately $120.7 million of which $52 .9 million had been drawn, or 
used for letters of credit.  

Management regularly reviews the liquidity position  of the Company and has implemented internal polici es which establish guidelines 
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit the total amount of purchased funds used to support the  balance sheet and funding 
from non-core sources.  

Subprime Assets  

The Bank does not engage in subprime lending activi ties targeted towards borrowers in high risk catego ries.  

Accounting Matters  

Information on new accounting matters is set forth in Footnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stateme nts included at Item 8 in 
this report. This information is incorporated herei n by reference.  

Impact of Inflation  

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets and li abilities of financial institutions such as the Com pany are primarily monetary 
in nature. Therefore, interest rates have a more si gnificant effect on the Company’s performance than do the effects of changes in 
the general rate of inflation and change in prices.  In addition, interest rates do not necessarily mov e in the same direction or in 
the same magnitude as the prices of goods and servi ces. As discussed previously, management seeks to m anage the relationships 
between interest sensitive assets and liabilities i n order to protect against wide interest rate fluct uations, including those 
resulting from inflation.  

                                                           REPORT OF 
                                         INDEPENDEN T REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 
To the Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors and Stockholders 
The First Bancshares, Inc. 
Hattiesburg, Mississippi 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying  consolidated bala nce sheets of The First Bancshares,  Inc., and subs idiary as of December 31, 
2007 and 2006, and the related  consolidated  state ments of income,  changes in  stockholders'  equity ,  and cash flows for the 
years then ended.  These financial  statements are the  responsibility of the Company's  management.  Our  responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements ba sed on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance  with the sta ndards of the Public Company  Accounting  Oversight   Board (United  States). 
Those  standards  require  that we plan and perform   the audits to obtain  reasonable  assurance  abou t  whether the  financial 
statements are free of material  misstatement.  The  Company is not required to have,  nor were we enga ged to perform,  an audit 
of its internal  control over  financial  reporting .  Our audits  included  consideration  of internal   control over  financial 
reporting as a basis for designing  audit  procedur es  that are  appropriate in the  circumstances,  b ut not for the purpose of 
expressing  an opinion on the  effectiveness  of th e Company's  internal  control over  financial  rep orting.  Accordingly,  we 
express no such opinion.  An audit includes  examin ing,  on a test basis,  evidence  supporting the am ounts and  disclosures in 
the financial  statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting  principles used and signi ficant  estimates made by 
management,  as well as  evaluating  the  overall  financial  statement  presentation.  We believe  th at our  audits  provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion,  the  financial  statements  referr ed to above  present  fairly,  in all material  res pects,  the  consolidated 
financial  position of The First  Bancshares,  Inc. , and  subsidiary as of  December 31,  2007 and 200 6,  and the  consolidated 
results of their operations and their cash flows fo r the years then ended, in conformity with accounti ng  principles  generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 
                                                       /s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY 
 
 
Columbus, Mississippi 
March 28, 2008 



 
 
                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                                  C ONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                                                  D ECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006  
 
       ASSETS                                                                                    2007                 2006 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
 
Cash and due from banks                                                                      $ 10,890, 248         $  9,743,065 
Interest-bearing deposits with banks                                                              227, 853              672,137 
Federal funds sold                                                                                223, 000            8,772,000 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
    Total cash and cash equivalents                                                            11,341, 101           19,187,202 
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of  $13,130  in 
    2007 and $13,539 in 2006)                                                                      12, 932               13,363 
Available -for-sale securities                                                                  84,319,208           89,480,015 
Other securities                                                                                2,719, 950            2,316,500 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
    Total securities                                                                           87,052, 090           91,809,878 
Loans held for sale                                                                             5,663, 813            3,944,818 
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,221,2 40 
    in 2007 and $3,792,937 in 2006                                                            361,337, 973          280,137,343 
Interest receivable                                                                             3,538, 560            2,905,133 
Premises and equipment                                                                         15,622, 426            9,953,178 
Cash surrender value of life insurance                                                          5,461, 938            5,247,889 
Goodwill                                                                                          702, 213              782,420 
Other assets                                                                                    5,336, 164            3,800,942 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
Total assets                                                                                $ 496,056, 278        $ 417,768,803 
 
       LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
 
Deposits: 
    Noninterest-bearing                                                                      $ 55,349, 239         $ 58,651,631 
    Interest-bearing                                                                          330,818, 605          293,070,049 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
       Total deposits                                                                         386,167, 844          351,721,680 
Interest payable                                                                                1,284, 550            1,021,194 
Borrowed funds                                                                                 60,772, 520           20,827,427 
Subordinated debentures                                                                        10,310, 000           11,341,000 
Other liabilities                                                                               1,240, 705              492,697 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
       Total liabilities                                                                      459,775, 619          385,403,998 
Stockholders' Equity: 
    Preferred stock, par value $1 per share, 10,000 ,000 
       shares authorized; no shares issued and outs tanding                                              -                    - 
    Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,00 0 shares 
       authorized; 3,015,045 and 2,884,902 shares i ssued 
       In 2007 and 2006, respectively                                                           3,015, 045            2,884,902 
    Additional paid-in capital                                                                 22,929, 333           22,344,734 
    Retained earnings                                                                          10,306, 336            7,629,275 
    Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)                                                 493, 590             (30,461) 
    Treasury stock, at cost                                                                     (463,6 45)            (463,645) 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
       Total stockholders' equity                                                              36,280, 659           32,364,805 
                                                                                          ------------ ----     ---------------- 
 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity                                                  $ 496,056, 278        $ 417,768,803 
                                                                                          ============ ====     ================ 
 
 
 
                               The accompanying not es are an integral part of these statements. 

 
 
                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                               CONS OLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006  
 
INTEREST INCOME                                                                                   2007                 2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Interest and fees on loans                                                              $  28,731, 899        $  19,976,374 
    Interest and dividends on securities 
       Taxable interest and dividends                                                           3,669, 168            2,932,262 
       Tax-exempt interest                                                                        734, 373              262,469 
    Interest on federal funds sold                                                                231, 706              544,880 
    Interest on deposits in banks                                                                  32, 218               43,557 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Total interest income                                                                      33,399, 364           23,759,542 
 
INTEREST EXPENSE 
    Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or more                                               3,066, 445            1,830,773 
    Interest on other deposits                                                                  9,942, 972            5,755,611 
    Interest on borrowed funds                                                                  2,134, 196            1,789,894 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
       Total interest expense                                                                  15,143, 613            9,376,278 



                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Net interest income                                                                        18,255, 751           14,383,264 
    Provision for loan losses                                                                   1,320, 914              800,361 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
       Net interest income after provision for loan  losses                                     16,934, 837           13,582,903 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
OTHER INCOME 
    Service charges on deposit accounts                                                         1,877, 952            1,318,244 
    Other service charges and fees                                                                720, 461              490,421 
    Bank owned life insurance income                                                              213, 699              194,078 
    Other gains                                                                                   198, 682              224,315 
    Gain(loss) on other real estate                                                                37, 322             (39,993) 
    Other                                                                                         141, 019               52,129 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
       Total other income                                                                       3,189, 135            2,239,194 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
OTHER EXPENSE 
    Salaries                                                                                    7,550, 615            5,507,187 
    Employee benefits                                                                           1,411, 188            1,105,907 
    Occupancy                                                                                     967, 425              745,981 
    Furniture and equipment                                                                       917, 197              858,205 
    Supplies and printing                                                                         402, 125              311,111 
    Professional and consulting fees                                                              505, 908              407,004 
    Marketing and public relations                                                                322, 593              319,786 
    Data processing                                                                               206, 772              198,798 
    Other                                                                                       2,538, 807            1,684,278 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
       Total other expense                                                                     14,822, 630           11,138,257 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
 
Income before income taxes                                                                      5,301, 342            4,683,840 
Income taxes                                                                                    1,478, 669            1,368,826 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
 
Net income                                                                                   $  3,822, 673         $  3,315,014 
                                                                                         ============= ====     ================= 
Net income per common share: 
    Basic                                                                                    $       1 .28         $       1.35 
    Diluted                                                                                          1 .25                 1.27 
 
 
 
                               The accompanying not es are an integral part of these statements. 

 
 
                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                  CONSOLIDATED STAT EMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006  
 
                                                                                          Accumulated 
                                                                                             Other 
                           Compre-                      Additional                        Compre- 
                           hensive        Common          Paid-in        Retained         hensive        Treasury 
                            Income         Stock          Capital        Earnings      Income (Loss)      Stock           Total 
                         ------------ ------------- -- --------------- --------------- --------------- -------------- --------------  
Balance, 
  January 1, 2006                       $ 1,213,844     $ 13,220,940     $ 4,694,292     $ (187,831)  $    (463,645)    $ 18,477,600 
 
Comprehensive 
income: 
    Net income 2006        $3,315,014             -                -       3,315,014               -              -       3,315,014 
    Net change in 
      unrealized gain 
      on available- 
      For-sale 
      securities, 
      Net of tax              157,370             -                -               -         157,370              -         157,370 
                         ------------ 
Comprehensive 
  Income                   $3,472,384 
                         ============ 
Stock Sale                                  365,000        7,820,355               -               -              -       8,185,355 
2 for 1 stock split                       1,187,600      (1,187,600)               -               -              -               - 
Exercise of stock 
  Options                                     9,277           58,011               -               -              -          67,288 
Adoption of SFAS  
  123R                                            -            9,211               -               -              -           9,211 
Stock issued in 
  acquisition                               109,181        2,423,817               -               -              -       2,532,998 
Cash dividend 
  Declared, $.16 
  per share                                       -                -       (380,031)               -              -       (380,031) 
                                      ------------- -- --------------- --------------- --------------- -------------- --------------  
Balance, 
  December 31, 2006                       2,884,902       22,344,734       7,629,275        (30,461)      (463,645)      32,364,805 
                                      ------------- -- --------------- --------------- --------------- -------------- --------------  
Comprehensive 



  Income: 
    Net income 2007        $3,822,673             -                -       3,822,673               -              -       3,822,673 
    Net change in 
      unrealized gain 
      on available- 
      For-sale 
      securities, 
      Net of tax              524,051             -                -               -         524,051              -         524,051 
                         ------------ 
Comprehensive 
  Income                   $4,346,724 
                         ============ 
Exercise of stock 
  Options                                   130,143          582,322               -               -              -         712,465 
Stock option expense                              -            2,277               -               -              -           2,277 
Tax benefit on 
  Options                                         -                -         418,543               -              -         418,543 
Cash dividend 
  Declared, $.525 
  per share                                       -                -     (1,564,155)               -              -     (1,564,155) 
                                      ------------- -- --------------- --------------- --------------- -------------- --------------  
Balance, 
  December 31, 2007                     $ 3,015,045     $ 22,929,333    $ 10,306,336      $  493,590    $ (463,645)    $ 36,280,659 
                                      ============= == =============== =============== =============== ============== ==============  
 
 
                             The accompanying notes  are an integral part of these statements. 

 
 
                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                            CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006  
 
                                                                                                 2007                 2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
    Net income                                                                               $  3,822, 673         $  3,315,014 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash : 
       Depreciation and amortization                                                              978, 964              676,074 
       Stock option expense                                                                         2, 277                9,211 
       FHLB Stock dividends                                                                      (75,6 00)             (72,800) 
       Provision for loan losses                                                                1,320, 914              800,361 
       Deferred income taxes                                                                      210, 766               20,186 
       Increase in cash value of life insurance                                                 (214,0 49)            (193,728) 
       Securities, amortization and accretion, net                                                 75, 958              127,940 
       Other gains                                                                              (198,6 82)            (224,315) 
       (Gain)loss on other real estate                                                           (37,3 22)               39,993 
       Changes in: 
          Loans held for sale                                                                 (1,718,9 95)            (625,825) 
          Interest receivable                                                                   (633,4 27)            (782,616) 
          Other assets                                                                          (477,8 09)            (510,874) 
          Interest payable                                                                        263, 356              455,273 
          Other liabilities                                                                       748, 008            (425,738) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Net cash provided by operating activities                                                   4,067, 032            2,608,156 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
    Cash received in excess of cash paid for acquis ition                                                -            1,833,291 
    Purchases of available-for-sale securities                                               (24,340,2 84)         (47,441,689) 
    Purchases of other securities                                                             (1,239,2 50)            (444,350) 
    Proceeds from maturities and calls of available -for-sale securities                        29,906, 029           28,102,155 
    Proceeds from sales of securities available-for -sale                                                -            2,457,620 
    Proceeds from redemption of other securities                                                  911, 400              303,350 
    Proceeds from sale of lease/land                                                              352, 669              532,755 
    Proceeds from sale of other real estate                                                        96, 511              492,670 
    Increase in loans                                                                        (83,940,3 96)         (69,404,210) 
    Additions to premises and equipment                                                       (6,586,9 22)          (1,672,841) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Net cash used in investing activities                                                    (84,840,2 43)         (85,241,249) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
    Increase in deposits                                                                       34,446, 164           65,573,596 
    Proceeds from borrowed funds                                                               44,875, 000           10,000,000 
    Repayment of borrowed funds                                                               (4,929,9 07)         (14,637,845) 
    Exercise of stock options                                                                     712, 465               67,288 
    Dividends paid on common stock                                                            (1,564,1 55)            (380,031) 
    Issuance of subordinated debentures                                                         6,186, 000            4,124,000 
    Repayment of subordinated debentures                                                      (7,217,0 00)                    - 
    Tax benefit on non-incentive stock options                                                    418, 543                    - 
    Issuance of common stock                                                                            -            8,185,355 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
    Net cash provided by financing activities                                                  72,927, 110           72,932,363 
                                                                                         ------------- ----     ----------------- 
 
 



                               The accompanying not es are an integral part of these statements. 

 
 
                                                  THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
                                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
                                            YEARS E NDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006  
 
                                                                                                 2007                 2006 
                                                                                          ------------ -----    ----------------- 
 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s                                          (7,846,1 01)          (9,700,730) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                                 19,187, 202           28,887,932 
                                                                                          ------------ -----    ----------------- 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                     $ 11,341, 101         $ 19,187,202 
                                                                                          ============ =====    ================= 
Cash paid during the year for:  
    Interest                                                                                 $ 14,880, 257         $  8,807,553 
    Income taxes                                                                                1,907, 080            2,457,655 
 
Non-cash activities:  
    Transfers of loans to other real estate                                                     1,542, 644              739,030 
    Issuance of stock in acquisition                                                                    -            2,532,998 
 
 
 
                               The accompanying not es are an integral part of these statements. 

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

NOTE A — NATURE OF BUSINESS  

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) is a finan cial holding company whose business is primarily co nducted by its wholly-owned 
subsidiary, The First, A National Banking Associati on (the Bank). The Bank provides a full range of ba nking services in its primary 
market area of South Mississippi. The Company, as a  financial holding company, is regulated by the Fed eral Reserve Bank. Its 
subsidiary bank is subject to the regulation of the  Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OCC).  

NOTE B — SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

The Company and its subsidiary follow accounting pr inciples generally accepted in the United States of  America including, where 
applicable, general practices within the banking in dustry.  

1.     Principles of Consolidation  

The consolidated financial statements include the a ccounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidi ary. All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been el iminated.  

2.     Estimates  

The preparation of financial statements in conformi ty with accounting principles generally accepted in  the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptio ns that affect the reported amounts of assets and l iabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of th e financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reporting period. Actual results could differ f rom those estimates. Material estimates that are pa rticularly susceptible to 
significant change in the near term relate to the d etermination of the allowance for loan losses and t he valuation of deferred tax 
assets.  

3.     Cash and Due From Banks  

Included in cash and due from banks are legal reser ve requirements which must be maintained on an aver age basis in the form of cash 
and balances due from the Federal Reserve. The rese rve balance varies depending upon the types and amo unts of deposits. At December 
31, 2007, the required reserve balance on deposit w ith the Federal Reserve Bank was approximately $25, 000.  

4.     Securities  

Investments in securities are accounted for as foll ows:  

Available-for-Sale Securities  

Securities classified as available-for- sale are those securities that are intended to be h eld for an indefinite period of time, but 
not necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a  security classified as available-for-sale would be  based on various factors, 
including movements in interest rates, liquidity ne eds, security risk assessments, changes in the mix of assets and liabilities and 
other similar factors. These securities are carried  at their estimated fair value, and the net unreali zed gain or loss is reported 
in stockholders’ equity, net of tax, until realized . Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest  income using the interest 
method. Gains and losses on the sale of available-f or-sale securities are determined using the adjuste d cost of the specific 
security sold.  

Securities to be Held-to-Maturity  

Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those  securities for which there is a positive intent an d ability to hold to 



maturity. These securities are carried at cost adju sted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, computed by the 
interest method.  

Trading Account Securities  

Trading account securities are those securities whi ch are held for the purpose of selling them at a pr ofit. There were no trading 
account securities on hand at December 31, 2007 and  2006.  

Other Securities  

Other securities are carried at cost and are restri cted in marketability. Other securities consist of investments in the Federal 
Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank and Fir st National Bankers’ Bankshares, Inc.  

5.     Loans held for sale  

The Company originates fixed rate single family, re sidential first mortgage loans on a presold basis. The Company issues a rate 
lock commitment to a customer and concurrently “loc ks in” with a secondary market investor under a best effor ts delivery mechanism. 
Such loans are sold without the servicing retained by the Company. The terms of the loan are dictated by the secondary investors 
and are transferred within several weeks of the Com pany initially funding the loan. The Company recogn izes certain origination fees 
and service release fees upon the sale which are in cluded in interest and fees on loans in the consoli dated statements of income. 
Between the initial funding of the loans by the Com pany and the subsequent purchase by the investor, t he Company carries the loans 
held for sale at the lower of cost or fair value in  the aggregate as determined by the outstanding com mitments from investors.  

6.     Loans  

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstandi ng, net of the allowance for loan losses. Interest income on loans is recognized 
based on the principal balance outstanding and the stated rate of the loan. Loan origination fees and certain direct origination 
costs are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method .  

A loan is considered impaired when, based upon curr ent events and information, it is probable that the  scheduled payments of 
principal or interest will not be collected in acco rdance with the contractual terms of the loan agree ment. Factors considered by 
management in determining impairment include paymen t status, collateral values, and the probability of  collecting scheduled 
payments of principal and interest when due. Genera lly, impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis  using the fair value of the 
supporting collateral.  

Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual status w hen principal or interest is past due ninety days o r when specifically 
determined to be impaired. When a loan is placed on  nonaccrual status, interest accrued but not receiv ed is generally reversed 
against interest income. If collectibility is in do ubt, cash receipts on nonaccrual loans are used to reduce principal rather than 
recorded in interest income. Past due status is det ermined based upon contractual terms.  

7.     Allowance for Loan Losses  

For financial reporting purposes, the provision for  loan losses charged to operations is based upon ma nagement’ s estimations of the 
amount necessary to maintain the allowance at an ad equate level. Allowances for any impaired loans are  generally determined based 
on collateral values. Loans are charged against the  allowance for loan losses when management believes  the collectibility of the 
principal is unlikely.  

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a regular basis. These evaluatio ns are based upon a periodic 
review of the collectibility considering historical  experience, the nature and value of the loan portf olio, underlying collateral 
values, internal and independent loan reviews, and prevailing economic conditions. In addition, the OC C, as a part of the 
regulatory examination process, reviews the loan po rtfolio and the allowance for loan losses and may r equire changes in the 
allowance based upon information available at the t ime of the examination. The allowance consists of t wo components: allocated and 
unallocated. The components represent an estimation  done pursuant to either Financial Accounting Stand ards Board (FASB) Statement 
No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies , or FASB Statement No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan . The allocated 
component of the allowance reflects expected losses  resulting from an analysis developed through speci fic credit allocations for 
individual loans, including any impaired loans, and  historical loan loss history. The analysis is perf ormed quarterly, and loss 
factors are updated regularly.  

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflects m anagement’s estimate of probable inherent but undet ected losses within the 
portfolio due to uncertainties in economic conditio ns, changes in collateral values, unfavorable infor mation about a borrower’s 
financial condition, and other risk factors that ha ve not yet manifested themselves. In addition, the unallocated allowance 
includes a component that explicitly accounts for t he inherent imprecision in the loan loss analysis.  

8.     Premises and Equipment  

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less acc umulated depreciation. The depreciation policy is t o provide for depreciation 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets using  the straight-line method. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to 
operating expenses; major expenditures for renewals  and betterments are capitalized and depreciated ov er their estimated useful 
lives. Upon retirement, sale, or other disposition of property and equipment, the cost and accumulated  depreciation are eliminated 
from the accounts, and any gains or losses are incl uded in operations.  

9.     Other Real Estate  

Other real estate consists of properties acquired t hrough foreclosure and, as held for sale property, is recorded at the lower of 
the outstanding loan balance or current appraisal l ess estimated costs to sell. Any write-down to fair  value required at the time 
of foreclosure is charged to the allowance for loan  losses. Subsequent gains or losses on other real e state are reported in other 
operating income or expenses. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, other real estate totaled $1,758,968 and $557,089, respectively.  

10.     Goodwill and Intangible Assets  

The following table summarizes the changes in goodw ill and core deposit intangible asset for the year ended December 31, 2007.  



                                                                                            Core depos it 
(Dollars in thousands)                                               Goodwill                intangibl e 
                                                             -----------------------    -------------- --------- 
 
Balance, January 1, 2007                                               $  782                  $  676 
Adjustments                                                              (80)                       - 
Amortization                                                                -                      70 
                                                                      --------                -------- - 
Balance, December 31, 2007                                             $  702                  $  606 
                                                                      ========                ======== = 

Acquired goodwill and core deposit intangible are r elated to the acquisition of First National Bank of  Wiggins on October 1, 2006. 
Adjustments to goodwill were the result of the fina lization of values subsequent to January 1, 2007.  

The following table presents the forecasted core de posit intangible asset amortization expense for 200 8 through 2012.  

                          (Dollars in thousands)                          Full year 
                                                                          expected 
                          Year                                          Amortization 
                          ----                                          ------------ 
                          2008                                               $69 
                          2009                                               $69 
                          2010                                               $69 
                          2011                                               $69 
                          2012                                               $69 

11.     Other Assets and Cash Surrender Value  

Financing costs related to the issuance of junior s ubordinated debentures are being amortized over the  life of the instruments and 
are included in other assets. The Company invests i n bank owned life insurance (BOLI). BOLI involves t he purchasing of life 
insurance by the Company on a chosen group of emplo yees. The Company is the owner of the policies and,  accordingly, the cash 
surrender value of the policies are reported as an asset, and increases in cash surrender values are r eported as income.  

12.     Stock Options  

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company’s stock optio n plans were accounted for under the recognition an d measurement provisions of 
APB Opinion No. 25 (Opinion 25), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees , and related Interpretations, as permitted by FASB  
Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure ) (collectively SFAS 123). No stock-based employee compensation cost was recognized in the Company’s 
consolidated statements of earnings through Decembe r 31, 2005, as all options granted under the plans had an exercise price equal 
to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of the grant. Effective January 1, 2006 , the Company adopted the 
fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement  No. 123 (R), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R), using the modified-prospective-
transition method. Under that transition method, co mpensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: (a) co mpensation cost for all 
share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant fa ir value calculated in 
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123 , and (b) compensation cost for all share-based pay ments granted subsequent to 
December 31, 2005, based on the grant-date fair val ue estimated in accordance with the provisions of S FAS 123R.  

As of December 31, 2007, only 2,308 stock options w ere not fully vested and no stock options were gran ted during the twelve months 
ended December 31, 2007.  

13.     Income Taxes  

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of th e transactions reported in the financial statements  and consist of taxes 
currently payable plus deferred taxes related prima rily to differences between the bases of assets and  liabilities as measured by 
income tax laws and their bases as reported in the financial statements. The deferred tax assets and l iabilities represent the 
future tax consequences of those differences, which  will either be taxable or deductible when the asse ts and liabilities are 
recovered or settled.  

The Company and its subsidiary file consolidated in come tax returns. The subsidiary provides for incom e taxes on a separate return 
basis and remits to the Company amounts determined to be payable.  

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation  No. 48, Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of F ASB Statement No. 109 (the Interpretation). This Interpretation provides 
guidance on financial statement recognition and mea surement of tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, in tax returns. The 
initial adoption of this Interpretation had no impa ct on the consolidated financial statements.  

14.     Advertising Costs  

Advertising costs are expensed in the period in whi ch they are incurred. Advertising expense for the y ears ended December 31, 2007 
and 2006, was approximately $221,616 and $263,644, respectively.  

15.     Statements of Cash Flows  

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash  equivalents include cash, amounts due from banks, interest-bearing deposits 
with banks and federal funds sold. Generally, feder al funds are sold for a one to seven day period.  

16.     Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments  

In the ordinary course of business, the subsidiary bank enters into off-balance sheet financial instru ments consisting of 
commitments to extend credit, credit card lines and  standby letters of credit. Such financial instrume nts are recorded in the 
financial statements when they are exercised.  

17.     Per Share Amounts  



Per share amounts are presented in accordance with FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings Per Share . Under Statement No. 128, two per 
share amounts are considered and presented, if appl icable. Basic per share data is calculated based on  the weighted-average number 
of common shares outstanding during the reporting p eriod. Diluted per share data includes any dilution  from potential common stock 
outstanding, such as exercise of stock options.  

The following table discloses the reconciliation of  the numerators and denominators of the basic and d iluted computations:  

                                       For the Year  Ended                                       For th e Year Ended 
                                       December 31,  2007                                        Decemb er 31, 2006 
                          ------------------------- --------------------------   ---------------------- -----------------------------  
                                Net                                                  Net 
                               Income            Sh ares         Per Share          Income              Shares        Per Share 
                            (Numerator)       (Deno minator)       Amount         (Numerator)        (D enominator)      Amount 
 
Basic per share              $3,822,673         2,9 80,566        $  1.28        $ 3,315,014           2,450,988       $  1.35 
                                                                 =======                                              ======= 
 
Effect of dilutive 
    Shares: 
        Stock options                              81,089                                               158,156 
                                                --- ------                                             --------- 
                             $3,822,673         3,0 61,655        $   .25        $ 3,315,014           2,609,144       $  1.27 
                             ==========         === ======        =======        ===========           =========       ======= 

The diluted per share amounts were computed by appl ying the treasury stock method.  

18.     Reclassifications  

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 200 6 financial statements to conform with the  

classifications used in 2007. These reclassifications did not impact the Company's consolidated financial condition or results of operations. 

19.     Accounting Pronouncements  

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” . This Statement defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value in accounting pr inciples generally accepted in the United States of  America, and expands 
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Sta tement is effective for years beginning after Decem ber 15, 2007. The adoption of 
this standard is not expected to have a material ef fect on the Company’s results of operations or fina ncial position.  

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an ame ndment of FASB Statement No. 
115.” SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure elig ible items at fair value at specified election date s. Unrealized gains and 
losses on items for which the fair value option has  been elected are reported in earnings at each subs equent reporting date. The 
fair value option (i) may be applied instrument by instrument, with certain exceptions, (ii) is irrevo cable (unless a new election 
date occurs) and (iii) is applied only to entire in struments and not to portions of instruments. SFAS 159 is effective for the 
Company on January 1, 2008 and is not expected to h ave a significant impact on the Corporation’s finan cial statements.  

Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 06-4,  “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Postreti rement Benefit Aspects of 
Endorsement Split Dollar Life Insurance Arrangement s” EITF 06-4 requires the recognition of a liability a nd related compensation 
expense for endorsement split-dollar life insurance  policies that provide a benefit to an employee tha t extends to post-retirement 
periods. Under EITF 06- 4, life insurance policies purchased for the purpos e of providing such benefits do not effectively set tle an 
entity’ s obligation to the employee. Accordingly, the enti ty must recognize a liability and related compensat ion expense during the 
employee’s active service period based on the  

future cost of insurance to be incurred during the employee’s retirement. If the entity has agreed to provide the employee with a 
death benefit, then the liability for the future de ath benefit should be recognized by following the g uidance in SFAS No. 106, 
“Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” The Company expects to adopt EITF 06-4 effective as  of 
January 1, 2008 as a change in accounting principle  through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained  earnings. The amount of the 
adjustment is not expected to be significant.  

NOTE C — ACQUISITION  

On October 1, 2006, the Company completed a merger transaction in which it acquired First National Ban k of Wiggins (“Wiggins”), 
headquartered in Wiggins, Mississippi. This acquisi tion was consistent with the Company’s strategy of expanding its operations and 
market share in Mississippi. The results of operati ons of Wiggins have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements since the acquisition date.  

The aggregate purchase price for the acquisition wa s $5.0 million which included cash of $2.1 million,  direct merger costs of $.4 
million, and approximately 109,000 shares of common  stock with an aggregate fair value of $2.5 million . The aggregate value of the 
common stock was calculated for this purpose using a $23.20 per share value based on the closing price  of First Bancshares stock on 
the acquisition announcement date.  

The transaction was accounted for under the purchas e method of accounting, with Wiggins’ assets and li abilities being recorded at 
their estimated fair values. Wiggins’ allowance for  loan losses was recorded at the carrying value and  contained no specific 
reserves. The purchase price in excess of the net f air value of the assets and liabilities acquired wa s recorded as goodwill. The 
amount of goodwill recorded was $.7 million. The go odwill is not tax deductible for federal income tax  purposes.  

The following table summarizes the preliminary esti mated fair value of assets and liabilities purchase d at the date of acquisition. 

            (Dollars in thousands) 
 
 
            ---------------------- 



                Assets acquired: 
                     Cash and cash equivalents                                                             $     4,268 
                     Investment securities                                                                      23,981 
                     Loans, net                                                                                 17,649 
                Premises and equipment, net                                                                        832 
                     Core deposit intangible                                                                       693 
                     Goodwill                                                                                      702 
                     Other assets, net                                                                           1,121 
                                                                                                           ------------ 
                           Total assets acquired                                                           $    49,246 
                                                                                                           ============ 
                Liabilities assumed: 
                     Deposits                                                                              $    44,199 
                     Other liabilities                                                                             203 
                                                                                                           ------------ 
                           Total liabilities assume d                                                       $    44,402 
                                                                                                           ------------ 
                           Net assets purchased                                                            $     4,844 
                                                                                                           ============ 

The Company is amortizing the resulting core deposi t intangible of $693,000 using the straight-line me thod over ten years.  

The following unaudited summary information present s the consolidated results of operations of the Com pany on a pro forma basis for 
the year ended December 31, 2006 as if the First Na tional Bank of Wiggins had been acquired on January  1, 2006.  

                                                    Year Ended December 31, 2006 
                                        ----------- -------------------------------------- 
 
                                        Interest in come                       $  25,888 
                                        Interest ex pense                         10,180 
                                            Net inc ome                            2,721 
 
                                        Net income per share: 
                                            Basic                             $    1.07 
                                            Diluted                                 1.01 

NOTE D — SECURITIES  

A summary of the amortized cost and estimated fair value of available -for-sale securities and held-to-maturity securitie s at 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, follows:  

                                                                                  December 31, 2007 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                               Gross             Gross            Estimated 
                                                           Amortized         Unrealized        Unreali zed           Fair 
                                                              Cost             Gains             Losse s            Value 
                                                        --------------     ----------------   -------- -------   --------------- 
   Available-for-sale securities:  
      Obligations of U.S. Government 
         Agencies                                          $32,774,364         $ 491,294         $   3 ,007       $33,262,651 
      Tax-exempt and taxable 
         obligations of states and 
         municipal subdivisions                             21,148,995           218,846           144 ,021        21,223,820 
       Mortgage-backed securities                           24,597,996           230,483            11 ,424        24,817,055 
       Corporate obligations                                 3,891,491             8,972            40 ,993         3,859,470 
       Other                                                 1,158,492                 -             2 ,280         1,156,212 
                                                        --------------     ----------------   -------- -------   --------------- 
                                                           $83,571,338        $  949,595         $ 201 ,725       $84,319,208 
                                                        ==============     ================   ======== =======   =============== 
   Held-to-maturity securities:  
       Mortgage-backed securities                          $    12,932        $      198         $       -       $    13,130 
                                                        ==============     ================   ======== =======   =============== 

                                                                                      December 31, 200 6 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                   Gross            Gr oss           Estimated 
                                                               Amortized         Unrealized       Unre alized          Fair 
                                                                 Cost              Gains           Los ses             Value 
                                                        ------------------   ----------------   ------ ----------   ------------- 
   Available-for-sale securities:  
      Obligations of U.S. Government 
         Agencies                                            $45,766,878          $  53,137        $ 1 98,001       $45,622,014 
      Tax-exempt and taxable 
         obligations of states and 
         municipal subdivisions                               15,393,960            132,295           52,420        15,473,835 
       Mortgage-backed securities                             23,809,129             88,553           66,127        23,831,555 
       Corporate obligations                                   3,451,390                490            4,072         3,447,808 
       Other                                                   1,104,803                  -                -         1,104,803 
                                                        ------------------   ----------------   ------ ----------   ------------- 
                                                             $89,526,160         $  274,475        $ 3 20,620       $89,480,015 
                                                        ==================   ================   ====== ==========   ============= 
   Held-to-maturity securities:  
       Mortgage-backed securities                            $    13,363         $      176        $       -       $    13,539 
                                                        ==================   ================   ====== ==========   ============= 



 
 
The scheduled maturities of securities at December 31, 2007, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                Available-for-Sale                    Held-to-Maturity 
                                                       ---------------------------------------  ------ -------------------------- 
                                                                               Estimated                           Estimated 
                                                           Amortized             Fair            Amort ized           Fair 
                                                              Cost               Value              Co st             Value 
                                                       ------------------    -----------------  ------ ----------   ------------- 
 
      Due less than one year                                 $  8,624,347        $ 8,633,164         $        -        $       - 
      Due after one year through five years                    32,079,268         32,582,068                 -                - 
      Due after five years through ten years                    9,306,833          9,370,053                 -                - 
      Due after ten years                                       8,962,894          8,916,868                 -                - 
      Mortgage-backed securities                               24,597,996         24,817,055            12,932           13,130 
                                                       ------------------    -----------------  ------ ----------   ------------- 
                                                             $ 83,571,338        $84,319,208         $   12,932        $  13,130 
                                                       ==================    =================  ====== ==========   ============= 
 

Actual maturities can differ from contractual matur ities because the obligations may be called or prep aid with or without 
penalties.  

No gains or losses were realized on available-for-s ale securities in 2007 or 2006.  

Securities with a carrying value of $49,721,719 and  $39,773,897 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respect ively, were pledged to secure 
public deposits, repurchase agreements, and for oth er purposes as required or permitted by law.  

The    details    concerning    securities    class ified    as    available-for-sale    with    unreal ized    losses   as   of 
December 31, 2007 and 2006, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                          2007 
                                 ------------------ ------------- -------------------------------- ---- --------------------------- 
                                       Losses < 12 Months             Losses 12 Months or >                   Total 
                                 ------------------ ------------- -------------------------------- ---- --------------------------- 
                                                     Gross                            Gross                           Gross 
                                      Fair         Unrealized         Fair         Unrealized          Fair         Unrealized 
                                     Value           Losses          Value           Losses           Value           Losses 
                                 --------------- -- ------------- --------------- ---------------- ---- ----------- --------------- 
Obligations of U.S. 
   Government agencies                $ 499,530        $    107      $3,246,800        $   2,900      $3,746,330       $   3,007 
Tax-exempt and tax- 
     able obligations of 
     states and municipal 
     subdivisions                     3,276,146          96,615       4,508,389           47,406       7,784,535         144,021 
Mortgage-backed 
     Securities                       1,414,177           2,200       1,094,802            9,224       2,508,979          11,424 
Corporate obligations                 1,317,201          40,993               -                -       1,317,201          40,993 
Other                                 1,156,212           2,280               -                -       1,156,212           2,280 
                                 --------------- -- ------------- --------------- ---------------- ---- ----------- --------------- 
                                     $7,663,266       $ 142,195      $8,849,991        $  59,530     $ 16,513,257       $ 201,725 
                                 =============== == ============= =============== ================ ==== =========== =============== 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                           2006 
                                 ------------------ ------------- -------------------------------- ---- --------------------------- 
                                       Losses < 12 Months             Losses 12 Months or >                   Total 
                                 ------------------ ------------- -------------------------------- ---- --------------------------- 
                                                     Gross                            Gross                           Gross 
                                      Fair         Unrealized         Fair         Unrealized          Fair         Unrealized 
                                     Value           Losses          Value           Losses           Value           Losses 
                                 --------------- -- ------------- --------------- ---------------- ---- ----------- --------------- 
Obligations of U.S. 
   Government agencies              $12,516,448       $  35,403     $13,356,106        $ 162,598     $ 25,872,554       $ 198,001 
Tax-exempt and tax- 
     able obligations of 
     states and municipal 
     subdivisions                     4,801,648          25,135       2,122,409           27,285       6,924,057          52,420 
Mortgage-backed 
     Securities                       4,097,314          11,463       3,299,976           54,664       7,397,290          66,127 
                                      1,303,272           4,072               -                -       1,303,272           4,072 
                                 --------------- -- ------------- --------------- ---------------- ---- ----------- --------------- 
                                    $22,718,682       $  76,073     $18,778,491        $ 244,547     $ 41,497,173       $ 320,620 
                                 =============== == ============= =============== ================ ==== =========== =============== 
 

Approximately 28.8% of the number of securities in the investment portfolio at December 31, 2007 refle cted an unrealized loss. 
Management is of the opinion the Company has the ab ility to hold these securities until such time as t he value recovers or the 



securities mature. Management also believes the det erioration in value is attributable to changes in m arket interest rates and not 
to the credit quality of the issuer.  

 
 
NOTE E - LOANS  
 
    Loans outstanding included the following types at December 31, 2007 and 2006: 
 
                                                                                                 2007                2006 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                                     ( In thousands) 
 
      Commercial, financial and agricultural                                                   $  46,6 33          $  36,258 
      Real estate - construction                                                                 100,6 34             69,420 
      Real estate - mortgage                                                                     197,5 30            158,538 
      Installment loans to individuals                                                            20,3 91             19,525 
      Overdrafts                                                                                     3 71                189 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                                 365,5 59            283,930 
      Allowance for loan losses                                                                  (4,22 1)            (3,793) 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                              $  361,3 38         $  280,137 
                                                                                           =========== =====    ================ 
 
    Transactions in the allowance for loan losses f or the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, were  as follows: 
                                                                                                  2007                2006 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
 
      Balance at beginning of year                                                            $ 3,792, 937        $ 2,366,773 
 
      Additions: 
          First National Bank of Wiggins acquisitio n                                                    -            704,707 
          Provision for loan losses charged to oper ations                                       1,320, 914            800,361 
          Recoveries                                                                               57, 222            107,386 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                                5,171, 073          3,979,227 
      Deductions: 
          Loans charged off                                                                       949, 833            186,290 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
      Balance at end of year                                                                  $ 4,221, 240        $ 3,792,937 
                                                                                           =========== =====    ================ 
 
 
 
    As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,  impaired loa ns totaled  $2,429,000  and  $1,789,000,  respectiv ely.  As of December 31, 
    2007 and 2006, $1,052,000 and $75,000, respecti vely of the allowance for loan losses was allocated  to impaired loans. 
 
    At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days or more  as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                2007                 2006 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                                      (In thousands) 
 
      Nonaccrual loans                                                                        $   2,42 9           $  1,789 
      Past due 90 days or more and still accruing                                                   99 4                118 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  
 
    Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less  accumulated depreciation and amortization as follo ws: 
 
                                                                                                 2007               2006 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
      Premises: 
          Land                                                                               $ 4,605,2 70        $ 3,205,280 
          Buildings and improvements                                                           7,471,5 58          6,462,212 
      Equipment                                                                                4,936,0 37          4,287,101 
      Construction in progress                                                                 3,291,7 69             18,529 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                              20,304,6 34         13,973,122 
      Less accumulated depreciation and amortizatio n                                         (4,682,20 8)        (4,019,944) 
                                                                                           ----------- -----    ---------------- 
                                                                                             $15,622,4 26        $ 9,953,178 
                                                                                           =========== =====    ================ 
 
 
    The amounts charged to operating expense for de preciation were $763,687 and $573,471 in 2007 and 2 006, respectively. 

 



 
NOTE G - DEPOSITS  
 
    The  aggregate  amount of time  deposits  in  d enominations  of $100,000 or more as of  December  31,  2007,  and 2006 was 
    $104,453,577 and $82,820,395, respectively. 
 
    At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of time deposits included in interest-bearing  depo sits were as follows (in 
    thousands): 
 
                                                        Year             Amount 
                                                        ----             ------ 
 
                                                        2008            $181,720 
                                                        2009               8,226 
                                                        2010               4,699 
                                                        2011               1,250 
                                                        2012               1,772 
                                                                        -------- 
                                                                        $197,667 
                                                                        ======== 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE H - BORROWED FUNDS 
 
    Borrowed funds consisted of the following: 
 
                                                                                                     D ecember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                2007                 2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
 
      Reverse Repurchase Agreement                                                           $15,000,0 00                  - 
      Federal Funds Purchased                                                                 12,875,0 00                  - 
      FHLB advances                                                                           32,897,5 20         20,827,427 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
                                                                                             $60,772,5 20        $20,827,427 
                                                                                         ============= ====    ================= 
 
    Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates rang ing from  January, 2008 through  June,  2013.  Inte rest  is payable monthly 
 
    at rates ranging from 2.651% to 5.920%.  Advanc es due to the FHLB are  collateralized by a blanket  lien on first mortgage 
    loans in the amount of the  outstanding  borrow ings,  FHLB capital stock,  and amounts on deposit with the FHLB.  At 
    December 31, 2007, FHLB advances available and unused totaled $67.8 million. 
 
    Future annual principal repayment requirements on the borrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 200 7, were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                 Ye ar                             Amount 
                                                 -- --                             ------ 
 
                                                 20 08                         $ 16,870,246 
                                                 20 09                            7,990,192 
                                                 20 10                            7,430,185 
                                                 20 11                               75,064 
                                                 20 12                              261,060 
                                              There after                           270,773 
                                                                              ------------ 
                                                                              $ 32,897,520 
                                                                              ============ 
 
    Reverse Repurchase  Agreements  consists of thr ee $5,000,000  agreements.  The agreements are secu red by securities with a 
 
    fair value of $16,451,000  at December 31, 2007 .  The maturity  dates are from August 22, 2012 thr ough  September 26, 2017 
    with rates between 3.81% and 4.51%. 

NOTE I — REGULATORY MATTERS  

The Company and its subsidiary bank are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by fed eral banking agencies. 
Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can in itiate certain mandatory and possibly additional di scretionary actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct  material effect on the Company’s financial stateme nts. Under capital adequacy 
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and its subsidiary b ank must meet specific 
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measur es of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amou nts and classifications are also subject to qualita tive judgment by regulators 
about components, risk weightings, and other relate d factors.  

To ensure capital adequacy, quantitative measures h ave been established by regulators, and these requi re the Company and its 
subsidiary bank to maintain minimum amounts and rat ios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tie r I capital (as defined) to 
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I ca pital to adjusted total assets (leverage). Manageme nt believes, as of December 
31, 2007, that the Company and its subsidiary bank exceed all capital adequacy requirements.  

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the subsidiary bank was categorized by regulators as well - capitalized under the regulatory framework 
for prompt corrective action. A financial instituti on is considered to be well-capitalized if it has a  total risk-based capital 
ratio of 10% or more, has a Tier I risk-based capit al ratio of 6% or more, and has a Tier I leverage c apital ratio of 5% or more. 



There are no conditions or anticipated events that,  in the opinion of management, would change the cat egorization.  

The actual capital amounts and ratios at December 3 1, 2007 and 2006, are presented in the following ta ble. No amount was deducted 
from capital for interest-rate risk exposure.  

 
 
                                                              Company                             Subs idiary 
                                                           (Consolidated)                         The First 
                                               ---- --------------------------------    --------------- ------------------- 
                                                      Amount              Ratio          Amount              Ratio 
                                                      ------              -----          ------              ----- 
      December 31, 2007  
          Total risk-based                           $49,051              12.7%          $46,684             12.1% 
          Tier I risk-based                           44,830              11.6%           42,463             11.0% 
          Tier I leverage                             44,830               9.1%           42,463              8.7% 
 
      December 31, 2006  
          Total risk-based                           $45,627              15.0%          $36,027             11.9% 
          Tier I risk-based                           41,834              13.7%           32,234             10.6% 
          Tier I leverage                             41,834              10.3%           32,234              7.9% 
 
    The minimum  amounts of capital and ratios as  established  by banking  regulators at December 31,  2007 and 2006,  were as 
    follows: 
 
                                                              Company                             Subs idiary 
                                                           (Consolidated)                         The First 
                                               ---- --------------------------------    --------------- ------------------- 
                                                      Amount              Ratio          Amount              Ratio 
                                                      ------              -----          ------              ----- 
      December 31, 2007  
          Total risk-based                           $30,860               8.0%          $30,771              8.0% 
          Tier I risk-based                           15,430               4.0%           15,385              4.0% 
          Tier I leverage                             19,598               4.0%           19,554              4.0% 
 
      December 31, 2006  
          Total risk-based                           $24,473               8.0%          $24,372              8.0% 
          Tier I risk-based                           12,236               4.0%           12,185              4.0% 
          Tier I leverage                             16,287               4.0%           16,237              4.0% 
 
 
    The Company's dividends,  if any, are expected to be made from dividends received from its subsidi ary bank. The OCC limits 
    dividends of a national  bank in any calendar  year to the net profits of that year combined with the retained net profits 
    for the two preceding years. 

 
 
NOTE J - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
    The Company and its  subsidiary  bank  report  comprehensive  income as  required  by FASB  Statem ent  No. 130,  Reporting 
    Comprehensive  Income .  In accordance with this statement,  unrealized  gains and losses on securities  available-for-sale 
    are included in other comprehensive income. 
 
    In the  calculation of  comprehensive  income,  certain  reclassification  adjustments  are made t o avoid double  counting 
    amounts that are displayed as part of net incom e for a period that also had been displayed as part  of other  comprehensive 
    income.  The disclosure of the reclassification  amounts is as follows: 
                                                                                               Years E nded December 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                  2007                2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ------ ------------------ 
 
      Unrealized holdings gains (losses) on availab le-for- 
          sale securities                                                                      $794,01 6          $ 238,439 
      Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losse s 
          realized in income                                                                          -                  - 
                                                                                             --------- -         ----------- 
      Net unrealized gains (losses)                                                             794,01 6            238,439 
      Tax effect                                                                              (269,965 )           (81,069) 
                                                                                             --------- -         ----------- 
      Net unrealized gains (losses), net of tax                                                $524,05 1          $ 157,370 
                                                                                             ========= =         =========== 
 
 
 
 
NOTE K - INCOME TAXES  
 
    The components of income tax expense are as fol lows: 
 
                                                                                                     D ecember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                  2007                2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ------ ------------------ 
 
      Current: 
          Federal                                                                             $1,560,5 95         $1,243,198 
          State                                                                                  128,8 40            145,814 
      Deferred                                                                                 (210,76 6)           (20,186) 



                                                                                              -------- --         ----------- 
                                                                                              $1,478,6 69         $1,368,826 
                                                                                              ======== ==         =========== 
 
 
    The Company's  income tax expense differs from the amounts  computed by applying the federal incom e tax statutory rates to 
    income before income taxes.  A reconciliation o f the differences is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                               Years Ended December 31 , 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                            2007                                     2006 
                                                        ------------------------------------ --------- ------------------------- 
                                                                Amount                  %            A mount                % 
                                                                ------                 ---           - -----               --- 
 
              Income taxes at statutory rate                  $1,802,456                34%      $ 1,5 92,506               34% 
              Tax-exempt income                                (323,197)               (6)%        (15 5,459)              (3)% 
              State income tax, net of federal 
                  Tax effect                                      85,034                 2%           96,237                2% 
              Tax credits                                      (139,850)               (3)%        (12 1,414)              (3)% 
              Other, net                                          54,226                 1%         (4 3,044)              (1)% 
                                                             ------------             ------    ------ ------             ------ 
                                                              $1,478,669                28%      $ 1,3 68,826               29% 
                                                             ============             ======    ====== ======             ====== 

    The components of deferred income taxes include d in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                    De cember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ---------------------- 
                                                                                                2007               2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ---    --------------- 
      Deferred tax assets: 
          Allowance for loan losses                                                          $ 1,099,5 76         $  916,228 
          Unrealized loss on available-for-sale sec urities                                             -             15,690 
          Net operating loss carryover                                                         1,040,7 46            990,688 
          Other                                                                                   94,6 53             21,292 
                                                                                         ------------- ---    --------------- 
                                                                                               2,234,9 75          1,943,898 
                                                                                         ------------- ---    --------------- 
 
      Deferred tax liabilities: 
          Securities                                                                           (112,79 9)           (92,719) 
          Unrealized gain on available-for-sale sec urities                                     (254,27 6)                  - 
          Premises and equipment                                                               (828,18 6)          (726,417) 
          Core deposit intangible                                                              (226,17 8)          (252,027) 
                                                                                         ------------- ---    --------------- 
                                                                                             (1,421,43 9)        (1,071,163) 
                                                                                         ------------- ---    --------------- 
      Net deferred tax asset                                                                 $   813,5 36        $   872,735 
                                                                                         ============= ===    =============== 
 

With the acquisition of Wiggins, the Company assume d a federal tax net operating loss carryover. This net operating loss is 
available to the Company through the year 2026.  

NOTE L — EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

The Company and its subsidiary bank provide a defer red compensation arrangement (401(k) plan) whereby employees contribute a 
percentage of their compensation. For employee cont ributions of three percent or less, the Company and  its subsidiary bank provide 
a matching contribution. Contributions totaled $114 ,397 in 2007 and $90,148 in 2006.  

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownership Pl an (ESOP) for employees who have completed one year  of service for the Company 
and attained age 21. Employees become fully vested after five years of service. Contributions to the p lan are at the discretion of 
the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2007, the E SOP held 6,946 shares of Company common stock and h ad no debt obligation. All 
shares held by the plan were considered outstanding  for net income per share purposes. Total ESOP expe nse was $75,000 for 2007 and 
$85,000 for 2006, respectively.  

The Company and its subsidiary bank have employment  agreements with certain executive officers. These agreements contain provisions 
concerning salaries, bonuses, incentive programs, a nd benefits related to a change in control.  

NOTE M — STOCK PLANS  

In 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Stock Option Plan (1997 Plan) which provides for the granting of  options to purchase up to 
144,370 shares of Company common stock by directors  and key employees of the Company and its subsidiar y. Options granted under the 
1997 Plan were exercisable at December 31, 1999, an d expired ten years after the grant date. As of Dec ember 31, 2007, all shares 
had been exercised or forfeited. All options expire d and were void unless exercised on or before March  18, 2007. The options were 
exercisable at not less than the market value of th e Company’s stock at the grant date.  

On May 27, 1999, the Company’s shareholders approve d the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (1999 Plan). The 19 99 Plan provides for the 
granting of options to purchase up to 213,376 share s of the Company’s common stock by the Company’s an d its subsidiary’ s directors, 
key employees, and management. Under the 1999 Plan,  the Company may grant either incentive stock optio ns or nonqualified stock 
options. Options granted to directors and employees  vest in equal amounts over three years. Stock opti ons granted to management 



vest based on annual performance goals or after nin e years and eleven months, if still employed. At De cember 31, 2007, 213,356 
options had been granted, and 92,580 had been exerc ised or forfeited. All options expire and are void unless exercised on or before 
April 15, 2009. The options are exercisable at not less than the market value of the Company ’s stock at the grant date.  

    A summary of the status of the stock option pla ns as of December  31, 2007 and 2006,  and changes  during the years ending 
    on those dates is presented below: 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                     December 31, 
                                                        ---------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                            2007                                     2006 
                                                        ------------------------------------ --------- ------------------------- 
                                                                              Weighted                            Weighted 
                                                                              Average                             Average 
                                                                              Exercise                            Exercise 
                                                            Shares              Price            Share s            Price 
                                                        -------------      ----------------  --------- -----   ----------------- 
 
   Options outstanding at beginning of year                  251,585         $        7          261,1 12         $       7 
   Options granted                                                 0                                   0 
   Options exercised                                       (130,143)         $        5          (9,52 7)         $       7 
   Options forfeited                                           (666)         $       12                0 
                                                        -------------                        --------- ----- 
   Options outstanding at end of year                        120,776         $        8          251,5 85         $       7 
                                                        =============                        ========= ===== 
   Options exercisable at end of year                        118,468         $        8          246,3 02         $       7 
                                                        =============                        ========= ===== 
 
 
    The following table summarizes information abou t stock options at December 31, 2007: 
 
 
 
                                                                              Remaining 
                                               Numb er                        Contractual                       Number 
          Exercise Price                     Outsta nding                    Life in Years                    Exercisable 
          --------------                     ------ -----                    -------------                    ----------- 
           $7.50 - 8.75                        114, 847                           1.3                           114,847 
              $12.50                             5, 929                           1.3                             3,621 
 

NOTE N — SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES  

The Company issued $7,217,000 of floating rate juni or subordinated deferrable interest debentures to T he First Bancshares Statutory 
Trust I, a Connecticut business trust, in which the  Company owns all of the common equity. The debentu res are the sole asset of the 
Trust. The Trust issued $7,000,000 of Trust Preferr ed Securities (TPSs) to investors. The Company’s ob ligations under the 
debentures and related documents, taken together, c onstitute a fully and unconditional guarantee by th e Company of the Trust’s 
obligations under the preferred securities. These d ebentures were called on March 26, 2007. On June 30 , 2006, The Company issued 
$4,124,000 of floating rate junior subordinated def errable interest debentures to The First Bancshares  Statutory Trust 2 in which 
the Company owns all of the common equity. The debe ntures are the sole asset of the Trust. The Trust i ssued $4,000,000 of Trust 
Preferred Securities (TPSs) to investors. The Compa ny’s obligations under the debentures and related d ocuments, taken together, 
constitute a fully and unconditional guarantee by t he Company of the Trust’s obligations under the pre ferred securities. The 
preferred securities are redeemable by the company in 2011, or earlier in the event the deduction of r elated interest for federal 
income taxes is prohibited, treatment as Tier I cap ital is no longer permitted, or certain other conti ngencies arise. The preferred 
securities must be redeemed upon maturity of the de bentures in 2036. Interest on the preferred securit ies is the three month London 
Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.65% and is paya ble quarterly. The terms of the subordinated debent ures are identical to those 
of the preferred securities. On July 27, 2007, The Company issued $6,186,000 of floating rate junior s ubordinated deferrable 
interest debentures to The First Bancshares Statuto ry Trust 3 in which the Company owns all of the com mon equity. The debentures 
are the sole asset of Trust 3. The Trust issued $6, 000,000 of Trust Preferred Securities (TPSs) to inv estors. The Company’s 
obligations under the debentures and related docume nts, taken together, constitute a full and uncondit ional guarantee by the 
Company of the Trust’s obligations under the prefer red securities. The preferred securities are redeem able by the Company in 2012, 
or earlier in the event the deduction of related in terest for federal income taxes is prohibited, trea tment as Tier 1 capital is no 
longer permitted, or certain other contingencies ar ise. The preferred securities must be redeemed upon  maturity of the debentures 
in 2037. Interest on the preferred securities is th e three month LIBOR plus 1.40% and is payable quart erly. The terms of the 
subordinated debentures are identical to those of t he preferred securities. In accordance with the pro visions of FASB 
Interpretation No. 46R (FIN 46R), “Consolidation of  Variable Interest Entities, An Interpretation of A RB No. 51,” the trusts are 
not included in the consolidated financial statemen ts.  

NOTE O — TREASURY STOCK  

Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at December 31, 2007, and 2006.  

NOTE P — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes lo ans to its directors and executive officers and to companies in which they have 
a significant ownership interest. In the opinion of  management, these loans are made on substantially the same terms, including 
interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other parties, are consistent with 
sound banking practices, and are within applicable regulatory and lending limitations. Such loans amou nted to approximately 
$6,955,000 and $7,046,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The activity in loans to curren t directors, executive 
officers, and their affiliates during the year ende d December 31, 2007, is summarized as follows (in t housands):  

           Loans outstanding at beginning of year                               $ 7,046 



           New loans                                                              2,573 
           Repayments                                                           (2,664) 
                                                                                ------- 
           Loans outstanding at end of year                                     $ 6,955 
                                                                                ======= 

During 2007, the Company purchased a building from one of its directors for approximately $600,000.  

NOTE Q — COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK  

In the normal course of business, there are outstan ding various commitments and contingent liabilities , such as guaranties, 
commitments to extend credit, etc., which are not r eflected in the accompanying financial statements. The subsidiary bank had 
outstanding letters of credit of $1,168,000 and $1, 679,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively , and had made loan 
commitments of approximately $47,402,000 and $57,11 4,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credit include some exposure to credit loss in the event o f nonperformance of the 
customer. Commitments to extend credit are agreemen ts to lend to a customer as long as there is no vio lation of any condition 
established in the contract. Standby letters of cre dit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance 
of a customer to a third party. The credit policies  and procedures for such commitments are the same a s those used for lending 
activities. Because these instruments have fixed ma turity dates and because a number expire without be ing drawn upon, they 
generally do not present any significant liquidity risk. No significant losses on commitments were inc urred during the two years 
ended December 31, 2007, nor are any significant lo sses as a result of these transactions anticipated.   

The primary market area served by the Bank is Forre st, Lamar, Jones, Pearl River, Jackson, Hancock, St one, and Harrison Counties 
within South Mississippi. Management closely monito rs its credit concentrations and attempts to divers ify the portfolio within its 
primary market area. As of December 31, 2007, manag ement does not consider there to be any significant  credit concentrations within 
the loan portfolio. Although the Bank’s loan portfo lio, as well as existing commitments, reflects the diversity of its primary 
market area, a substantial portion of a borrower’s ability to repay a loan is dependent upon the econo mic stability of the area.  

The Company has four leases for facilities. The fir st lease expires May 31, 2008. Monthly lease paymen ts are $2,392. The second 
lease requires monthly payments of $3,013 through J une, 2012. One five- year renewal option is included in the lease term. The third 
lease expires in December, 2008. Monthly lease paym ents are $1,293. Lease payments increase 3% every t welve month period. The 
fourth lease expires in June, 2008. Monthly lease p ayments are $6,045. The lease allows two six month options to renew. Three of 
the four leases are to related parties. Rent expens e for 2007 to the related parties amounted to $117, 160.02.  

Rental expense for premises and equipment for the y ears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was approxima tely $208,000 and $177,000, 
respectively.  

On October 8, 2007 The First Banchsares, Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiary, The First, A Nationa l Banking Association (the 
“Bank”) were formally named as defendants.  

The allegations against the Company and the Bank in clude counts of 1) Intentional Misrepresentation an d Omission; 2) Negligent 
Misrepresentation and/or Omission; 3) Breach of Fid uciary Duty; 4) Breach of Duty of Good Faith and Fa ir Dealing; and 5) Civil 
Conspiracy. The First Amended Complaint seeks damag es from all the defendants, including $2,420,775, a nnual dividends for the year 
2006 in the amount of $.30 per share, punitive dama ges, and attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company and the Bank deny any l iability, 
and they intend to defend vigorously against this l awsuit.  

NOTE R — DISCLOSURE ABOUT FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

The following disclosure of the estimated fair valu e of financial instruments is made in accordance wi th FASB Statement No. 107, 
Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instrumen ts . The estimated fair value amounts have been determ ined using available 
market information and appropriate valuation method ologies. However, considerable judgment is necessar ily required to interpret 
market data to develop the estimates of fair value.  Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are no t necessarily indicative of 
the amounts that could be realized in a current mar ket exchange. The use of different market assumptio ns and/or estimation 
methodologies may have a material effect on the est imated fair value amounts.  

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is 
practicable to estimate that value:  

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For such short-term instruments, the carrying amo unt is a reasonable estimate of fair value.  

Securities — For securities held as investments, fair value eq uals market price, if available. If a quoted market  price is not 
available, fair value is estimated using quoted mar ket prices for similar securities.  

Loans — The fair value of loans is estimated by discounti ng the future cash flows using the current rates at  which similar loans 
would be made to borrowers with similar credit rati ngs and for the same remaining maturities.  

Deposits — The fair values of demand deposits are, as requir ed by Statement No. 107, equal to the carrying valu e of such deposits. 
Demand deposits include noninterest-bearing demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts, and money  market demand accounts. The 
fair value of variable rate term deposits, those re pricing within six months or less, approximates the  carrying value of these 
deposits. Discounted cash flows have been used to v alue fixed rate term deposits and variable rate ter m deposits repricing after 
six months. The discount rate used is based on inte rest rates currently being offered on comparable de posits as to amount and term. 

Short-Term Borrowings — The carrying value of any federal funds purchased  and other short-term borrowings approximates their  fair 
values.  

FHLB and Other Borrowings — The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings are est imated using discounted cash flows, based on curren t 
incremental borrowing rates for similar types of bo rrowing arrangements. The carrying amount of any va riable rate borrowings 
approximates their fair values.  

Subordinated Debentures — The subordinated debentures bear interest at a vari able rate and the carrying value approximates the f air 
value.  



Off-Balance Sheet Instruments — Fair values of off-balance sheet financial instru ments are based on fees charged to enter into 
similar agreements. However, commitments to extend credit do not represent a significant value until s uch commitments are funded or 
closed. Management has determined that these instru ments do not have a distinguishable fair value and no fair value has been 
assigned.  

                                                                       For the Year Ended             For the Year Ended 
                                                                        December 31, 2007             December 31, 2006 
                                                                    ---------------------------   ---- ------------------------ 
                                                                     Carrying       Estimated      Car rying        Estimated 
                                                                      Amount       Fair Value       Am ount        Fair Value 
                                                                    -----------   -------------   ---- -------   -------------- 
                                                                                         (In thousands ) 
        Financial Instruments: 
            Assets: 
                Cash and cash equivalents                              11,341         11,341         1 9,187           19,187 
                Securities available-for-sale                          84,319         84,319         8 9,480           89,480 
                Securities held-to-maturity                                13             13             13               14 
                Other securities                                        2,720          2,720          2,317            2,317 
                Loans                                                 367,002        381,149        28 4,082          289,282 
 
            Liabilities: 
                Noninterest-bearing 
                   Deposits                                            55,349         55,349         5 8,652           58,652 
                Interest-bearing deposits                             330,819        332,837        29 3,070          293,132 
                Subordinated debentures                                10,310         10,310         1 1,341           11,341 
                FHLB and other borrowings                              60,773         60,773         2 0,827           20,827 

NOTE S — STOCK SPLIT  

On February 22, 2006, the Company’s board of direct ors declared a two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a 100% stock 
dividend. The record date for the shareholders enti tled to receive the additional shares was March 1, 2006. The stock split 
resulted in the issuance of approximately 1,187,600  shares of common stock and was accounted for by th e transfer of approximately 
$1,187,600 from additional paid-in capital to commo n stock. All per share amounts have been changed to  reflect the stock split.  

NOTE T — EQUITY OFFERING  

On November 21, 2006, the Company closed on a publi c offering of its common stock. As a result of this  offering, 365,000 shares 
were sold at a price of $22.50 per share, with net proceeds of approximately $8.2 million. Some of the se proceeds were used to fund 
the acquisition of the First National Bank of Wiggi ns and the remainder will be used for general corpo rate purposes.  

NOTE U — PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

The balance sheets, statements of income and cash f lows for The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent only) f ollow.  

                                                     Condensed Balance Sheets  
 
                                                                                                     D ecember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                2007               2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----   ------------------ 
      Assets: 
          Cash and cash equivalents                                                        $    928,32 9       $  8,693,312 
          Investment in subsidiary bank                                                      44,224,55 3         33,775,619 
          Investments in statutory trusts                                                       310,00 0            341,000 
          Other securities                                                                      100,00 0            100,000 
          Premises and equipment                                                                368,62 3            368,623 
          Other                                                                                 660,87 5            453,435 
                                                                                         ------------- ----   ------------------ 
                                                                                           $ 46,592,38 0       $ 43,731,989 
                                                                                         ============= ====   ================== 
      Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity: 
          Subordinated debentures                                                            10,310,00 0         11,341,000 
          Other                                                                                   1,72 1             26,184 
          Stockholders' equity                                                               36,280,65 9         32,364,805 
                                                                                         ------------- ----   ------------------ 
                                                                                           $ 46,592,38 0       $ 43,731,989 
                                                                                         ============= ====   ================== 

                                                Condensed Statements of Income  
 
                                                                                                     D ecember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                  2007                2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
      Income: 
          Interest and dividends                                                               $ 180,1 91         $  102,106 
          Other gains                                                                            198,6 82            224,315 
          Other                                                                                    1,8 75             10,191 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
                                                                                                 380,7 48            336,612 
      Expenses: 
          Interest on borrowed funds                                                             563,8 06            783,657 
          Other                                                                                  267,9 43            294,955 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 



                                                                                                 831,7 49          1,078,612 
      Loss before income taxes and equity in undist ributed income of 
          Subsidiary                                                                           (451,00 1)          (742,000) 
      Income tax benefit                                                                       (242,33 2)          (360,435) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
      Loss before equity in undistributed income of  subsidiary                                 (208,66 9)          (381,565) 
      Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary                                             4,031,3 42          3,696,579 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
 
      Net income                                                                              $3,822,6 73         $3,315,014 
                                                                                         ============= ====    ================= 
 
 
                                              Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  
 
                                                                                                     Y ears Ended 
                                                                                                     D ecember 31, 
                                                                                         ------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                                                  2007                2006 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
      Cash flows from operating activities: 
          Net income                                                                          $3,822,6 73        $ 3,315,014 
          Adjustments to reconcile net income to ne t cash and cash 
              Equivalents: 
                 Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary                                (4,031,34 2)        (3,696,579) 
                 Other gains                                                                   (198,68 2)          (224,315) 
                 Other, net                                                                    (385,89 0)            253,628 
                 Stock option expense                                                              2,2 77              9,211 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
                    Net cash used in operating acti vities                                      (790,96 4)          (343,041) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
 
      Cash flows from investing activities: 
          Investment in subsidiary bank                                                      (5,893,54 1)        (5,215,782) 
          Other, net                                                                              31,0 00           (74,000) 
          Proceeds from sale of lease and land                                                   352,6 69            532,755 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
                Net cash used in investing activiti es                                        (5,509,87 2)        (4,757,027) 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
 
      Cash flows from financing activities: 
          Dividends paid on common stock                                                     (1,564,15 5)          (380,031) 
          Issuance of subordinated debentures                                                  6,186,0 00          4,124,000 
          Tax benefit of non-incentive stock option s                                             418,5 43                  - 
          Repayment of subordinated debentures                                               (7,217,00 0)                  - 
          Exercise of stock options                                                              712,4 65             67,288 
          Issuance of common stock                                                                     -          8,185,355 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
                Net cash provided by (used in) fina ncing activities                          (1,464,14 7)         11,996,612 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
      Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equi valents                                   (7,764,98 3)          6,896,544 
 
      Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yea r                                           8,693,3 12          1,796,768 
                                                                                         ------------- ----    ----------------- 
      Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                                                 $ 928,3 29         $8,693,312 
                                                                                         ============= ====    ================= 
 

NOTE V - SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED) 
 
                                                                                       Three Months En ded 
                                                                 ------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
                                                                   March 31          June 30        Se pt. 30        Dec. 31 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
                                                                            (In thousands, except per share amounts) 
        2007  
        Total interest income                                      $  7,513       $  8,219        $  8 ,909       $  8,758 
        Total interest expense                                        3,344          3,603           3 ,987          4,208 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
            Net interest income                                       4,169          4,616           4 ,922          4,550 
        Provision for loan losses                                       330            320             316            355 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
            Net interest income after provision for  
                loan losses                                           3,839          4,296           4 ,606          4,195 
        Total non-interest income                                       654            707             966            862 
        Total non-interest expense                                    3,506          3,550           3 ,783          3,984 
        Income tax expense                                              276            341             496            366 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
 
        Net income                                                 $    711       $  1,112        $  1 ,293       $    707 
                                                                 ============     ============    ==== =========  ============== 
 
        Per share: 
            Net income, basic                                      $    .24       $    .37        $    .43       $    .24 
            Net income, diluted                                         .23            .36             .42            .24 
            Cash dividends declared                                     .30           .075            .075           .075 
 
        2006  



        Total interest income                                      $  4,843       $  5,548        $  6 ,079       $  7,289 
        Total interest expense                                        1,802          2,014           2 ,382          3,178 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
            Net interest income                                       3,041          3,534           3 ,697          4,111 
        Provision for loan losses                                        84            209             289            218 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
            Net interest income after provision for  
                loan losses                                           2,957          3,325           3 ,408          3,893 
        Total non-interest income                                       447            676             509            607 
        Total non-interest expense                                    2,308          2,662           2 ,864          3,304 
        Income tax expense                                              377            351             322            359 
                                                                 ------------     ------------    ---- ---------  -------------- 
 
        Net income                                                  $   759        $   988         $   731        $   837 
                                                                 ============     =============   ==== =========  ============== 
 
        Per share: 
            Net income, basic                                       $   .32        $   .42         $   .31        $   .30 
            Net income, diluted                                         .30            .39             .29            .29 
            Cash dividends declared                                     .16              -               -              - 
 
 
 



                                                        EXHIBIT 21 
 
                                                      SUBSIDIARIES OF 
                                                THE  FIRST BANCSHARES, INC. 
 
                                         The First,  A National Banking Association 
                                        (A National  chartered banking corporation) 
 
                                          The First  Bancshares Statutory Trust 1 
                                               (Con necticut statutory trust) 
 
                                          The First  Bancshares Statutory Trust 2 
                                                (De laware statutory trust) 
 
                                          The First  Bancshares Statutory Trust 3 
                                                (De laware statutory trust) 



                                                        EXHIBIT 23  
 
 
 
 
 
                                                  CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT 
                                             REGIST ERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
 
 
 
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference  in the Registration  Statements of The First Bancs hares,  Inc., on Form 
S-8 (Registration  No. 333-97001 and No. 333-81264)  of our report dated March 28,  2008 on the 2007 co nsolidated  financial 
statements  of The First  Bancshares,  Inc.,  which  report is included in the 2007 Annual  Report on F orm 10-K of The First 
Bancshares, Inc. 
 
 
 
                                                                       /S/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY 
 
 
 
Columbus, Mississippi 
March 28, 2008 
 
 
 



                                                     EXHIBIT 31 
 
 
 
                                      RULE 13a-14(a )/15(d)-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS  
 
I, David E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer, certi fy that: 
 
1.       I have reviewed this annual report on Form  10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc.; 
 
2.       Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material  fact or omit to 
         state a material fact necessary in order t o make the statements made, in light of the circums tances under which 
         such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 
3.       Based on my knowledge, the financial state ments, and other financial information included in this  report, fairly 
         present in all material respects the finan cial condition, results of operations and cash flow s of the small 
         business issuer as of, and for, the period s presented in this report; 
 
4.       The small business issuer's other certifyi ng officer(s) and I are responsible for establishin g and maintaining 
         disclosure controls and procedures (as def ined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for the small 
         business issuer and have: 
 
         a.      Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
                 designed under our supervision, to  ensure that material information relating to the s mall business 
                 issuer, including its consolidated  subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within  those entities, 
                 particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 
         b.      Evaluated the effectiveness of the  small business issuer's disclosure controls and pr ocedures and presented in 
                 this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pr ocedures as of the 
                 end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
         c.      Disclosed in this report any chang e in the small business issuer's internal control o ver financial reporting that 
                 occurred during the small business  issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small bus iness issuer's 
                 fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
                 likely to materially affect, the s mall business issuer's internal control over financ ial reporting; and 
 
5.       The small business issuer's other certifyi ng officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our mo st recent evaluation 
         of internal control over financial reporti ng, to the small business issuer's auditors and the  audit committee of 
         the small business issuer's board of direc tors (or persons performing the equivalent function s): 
 
         a.      All significant deficiencies and m aterial weaknesses in the design or operation of in ternal control over 
                 financial reporting which are reas onably likely to adversely affect the small busines s issuer's ability 
                 to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
 
         b.      Any fraud, whether or not material , that involves management or other employees who h ave a significant role in 
                 the small business issuer's intern al control over financial reporting. 
 
         Date: March 28, 2008 
 
                                                                       /s/ David E. Johnson 
                                                                       ------------------------------- -------- 
                                                                       David E. Johnson 
                                                                       Chief Executive Officer 

                                                     EXHIBIT 31 
 
                                      RULE 13a-14(a )/15(d)-14(a) CERTIFICATIONS 
 
 
I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certify  that: 
 
1.       I have reviewed this annual report on Form  10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc.; 
 
2.       Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material  fact or omit to 
         state a material fact necessary in order t o make the statements made, in light of the circums tances under which 
         such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 
 
3.       Based on my knowledge, the financial state ments, and other financial information included in this  report, fairly 
         present in all material respects the finan cial condition, results of operations and cash flow s of the small 
         business issuer as of, and for, the period s presented in this report; 
 
4.       The small business issuer's other certifyi ng officer(s) and I are responsible for establishin g and maintaining 
         disclosure controls and procedures (as def ined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for the small 
         business issuer and have: 
 
         a.      Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
                 designed under our supervision, to  ensure that material information relating to the s mall business 
                 issuer, including its consolidated  subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within  those entities, 
                 particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
 
         b.      Evaluated the effectiveness of the  small business issuer's disclosure controls and pr ocedures and presented in 
                 this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pr ocedures as of the 
                 end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
         c.      Disclosed in this report any chang e in the small business issuer's internal control o ver financial reporting that 
                 occurred during the small business  issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small bus iness issuer's 
                 fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
                 likely to materially affect, the s mall business issuer's internal control over financ ial reporting; and 
 
5.       The small business issuer's other certifyi ng officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our mo st recent evaluation 
         of internal control over financial reporti ng, to the small business issuer's auditors and the  audit committee of 



         the small business issuer's board of direc tors (or persons performing the equivalent function s): 
 
         a.      All significant deficiencies and m aterial weaknesses in the design or operation of in ternal control over 
                 financial reporting which are reas onably likely to adversely affect the small busines s issuer's ability 
                 to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
 
         b.      Any fraud, whether or not material , that involves management or other employees who h ave a significant role in 
                 the small business issuer's intern al control over financial reporting. 
 
         Date: March 28, 2008 
 
 
                                                                       /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                      -------------------------------- ------- 
                                                                       Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                                       Chief  Financial Officer 
 



                                                        EXHIBIT 32 
 
 
 
                                                SEC TION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS  
 
 
I, David E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer, certi fy that 
 
         this periodic report containing financial statements fully complies with the requirements of section 
         13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)) and that info rmation 
         contained in the periodic report fairly pr esents, in all material respects, the financial con dition and 
         results of operations of the issuer. 
 
         Date: March 28, 2008 
 
 
                                                     /s/ David E. Johnson 
                                                     --------------------------------------- 
                                                     David E. Johnson 
                                                     Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certify  that 
 
         this periodic report containing financial statements fully complies with the requirements of section 
         13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)) and that info rmation 
         contained in the periodic report fairly pr esents, in all material respects, the financial con dition and 
         results of operations of the issuer. 
 
         Date: March 28, 2008 
 
 
                                                     /s/ Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                     --------------------------------------- 
                                                     Dee Dee Lowery 
                                                     Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 


